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Forward-tooking statements

The descriptons of projections and plans that appear in this annual report are “forvvard-lzoking statements.”
They nvoive known ard unkrown risks and uncertantes in regard to such factors as product liabiity, currency
exchange rates, raw matenal costs, labor-management relations and poltica’ statylty. Tt ose and other vanables
cc.. d cause the Comparies' actual performance and resufts 10 d.ffer frem management’ i project:ons and plans.
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BRIDGESTONE CORPORATION

10-1,Kyobashi 1-choma,Chuo-ku, Tokyo 104-8340 Japan

Bridgestone Corporation Announces
Revised Financial Projections for Fiscal 2007

Tokyo (June 27, 2007) - Bridgestone Corporation today announced revisions to its consolidated
and non-consclidated financial projections for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. Its
original projections were announced on February 20, 2007. Set forth below is a summary of
management’s revised projections of consolidated and non-consolidated sales and eamings for
the fiscal year 2007.

Consolidated Financial Projections (January 1 to December 31, 2007)

(Reference)
{Revised) (Original)

FY2007 FY2007 Increase (decrease) FY2006

Projections | Projections Results
¥ million ¥ million ¥ million % ¥ million
Net sales 3,350,000 3,080,000 270,000 8.8 2,991,275
Operating income 211,000 191,000 20,000 10.5 190,876
Ordinary income 170,000 162,000 18,000 11.8 159,579
Net income 106,000 90,000 16,000 17.8 85,120

Management expects consolidated sales in fiscal year 2007 to increase over the projections
announced on February 20, 2007 due in part to consolidating sales of Bandag, Incorporated
. (Bandag) into consolidated sales, following Bridgestone Americas Holding, Inc., the U.S.
subsidiary of Bridgestone Corporation, completed acquisition of Bandag, combined with the
current expectation that the Yen will be weaker against the US dollar and the euro. Management
also expects an increase in operating income, ordinary income and net income over the
projections announced on February 20, 2007 due in part to group-wide efforts to enhance sales,
combined with the weaker-than-expected Japanese Yen against the US dollar and the euro.




Non-Consolidated Financial Projections {(January 1 to December 31, 2007)

(Reference)
(Revised) (Original)

FY2007 FY2007 Increase (decrease) FY2006

‘Projections | Projections Results
¥ miltion ¥ million ¥ million % ¥ million
Net sales 1,020,000 970,000 50,000 5.2 945,892
Operating income 98,000 91,000 7,000 7.7 95,211
Ordinary income 105,000 88,000 17,000 19.3 99,523
Net income 73,000 58,000 15,000 259 61,552

Management expects net sales and operating income in the fiscal year 2007 to increase over
the projections announced on February 20, 2007 due in part to the weaker-than-expected
Japanese Yen against the US dollar and the euro. Management also expects an increase in
ordinary income and net income over the projections announced on February 20, 2007 due in
part to the current expectation that the Yen will be weaker against the US dollar and the euro,
combined with dividend revenue from subsidiary shares due to the reorganization of certain

domestic subsidiaries.

-end-




Bridgestone Corporation, which has headquarters in Tokyo, is the parent company
of the Bridgestone Group, the world’s largest manufacturer of tires and other rubber
products. Bridgestone develops, manufactures and sells tires in over 150 countries
worldwide. Due to the region-specific nature of tire usage, Bridgestone Group
production and sales operations form a highly globalized network of companies
focused on supplying local market needs. With over 123,000 employees,
Bridgestone is a major employer in many parts of the world. Besides tires, which
account for about 80% of sales, Bridgestone also makes a wide range of industrial
and consumer products.

For more than 75 years, Bridgestone has been dedicated to the pursuit of superior
quality for the greater benefit of society. The passion and drive needed to push

tire development stem from this strong social commitment. The passion for
excellence embodied in the Bridgestone name in turn generates the pride and
motivation needed to maintain the highest standards. Passion, quality, motivation:
a cycle of perpetual emotion.

The new revolution
IS Just beginning...

Bridgestone annual report 2005 | 1
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The ultimate performance

Brdgestone founder Shepro Ishibash summarnzed the
COmMpany's MISSIon as "serving scclety with superior

qualty.” Supported by a wide-ranging and well-funded

R&D program, Bndgestone's relentless pursurt of the

highest quality has kept it at the forefront of mnovation in tres
and other rubber praoducts. The developrnent programs

for high-pertormance tires draw on a wealth of data generated
as a result of Bndgestone's longstanding commitment

as a suppler to the world's leading moetor spoerts senes,
including Formula Cne (Scudena Ferran on the left), MotaGP.
CHAMP Car and the Indy Racing League. Supernor quakly
ensures that Bndgestone tires are fitted to many of the werld's
premier luxury car margues. Supenor knowledge also translates
Into a stream of improved technologies for conventional car
tres, enhancing performance. durabiity and safety.

Bridgestene annual report 2005 | 03
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Safety first

Bridgestone tires on passenger cars, commercial vehicles and
aircraft carry many millions of pecple vast distances around the
world every day. This heavy responsibility mandates safety as
the primary concern. A pioneer in the field of tire safaty,
Bricigestone has introduced various technological advances

to increase the safety of drivers and passengers. For instance,
a structural design virtually eliminates the typical decline in grip
over a tire’s lifelime as it wears, while rubber foaming
technology absorbs water on icy road surfaces resulting in a
superior winter tires. Another area where Bridgestone is a leader
is runflat ires. These tires can continue to operate at a specified
speed for a specified distance after losing pressure under
normal conditions. This vastly improves safety in the event of a
sudden loss of pressure as may cccur with a puncture.
Bridgestone has also daveloped peripheral systems to enhance
tire safety, such as TPMS (Tire Pressure Monitoring Systems).
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Bridgestone | A vital component for industry ~
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A vital component for industry

While tires are the core business, Bridgestone also develops
and manufactures a diverse range of products based on
advanced rubber and resin technologies. Originally an
offshoot, the diversified products operations are now a major
contributer to sales. Besides being the global leader in tires
for earthmoving equipment, Bridgestone supplies conveyor
belts for transporting mined ores as well as hydraulic hoses
for power equipment. Bridgestone also makes maring hoses
and fenders for the shipping industry; butlding materials and
equipment for the construction industry; and flexible
potyurethane foam products with varied apptications, such as
automobile seat pads. Other applied industrial products
made from rubber include rubber tracks for specialized
vehicles, inflatable dams, sewer control gates, multi-rubber
bearings and antivibration components. Bridgestone is also a
leader in a number of applied materials fields, including
interlayer adhesive films for photovoltaic power generators,
performance films used in plasma display panels, and

semiconductive rollers for office equipment.
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Serving society with
superior quality

Bridgestone 13 a company that has remained true to

the mission envisaged by its founder of maximizing its
contribution to the community. Bridgestone products
play a wtal and fulfiling role in the lives of consumers -
not only In the tires on passenger cars, motorcycles,
trucks. buses and aircraft, but also in a diverse array of
less visible but equally important industrial components,
Bricgestone aiso supplies & range of products that make
Iife more enjoyable for many. Professional athletes and
sporting enthusiasts of all levels use Bndgestone golf
and tennis goods. And Bridgestone 15 the leading bicycle
brand in Japan. Bridgestone aiso spensors various
sports events such as the Bridgestone Open and the

World Goli Championships Bridgestone Invitational at
the Firestone Country Club in Akron. Ohio. U.S A

Bridgestone annual repart 2005 |
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Sales by business segment and major products

Bridgestene Corporation and Subsidiaries
Year ended December 31, 2005
|
|
|
|

/ Tires
Tires and Tubes
For passenger cars, trucks, buses,
construction and mining vehicies,
commercial vehicles, agricultural
machinery, aircraft, motoreycles and
scooters, racing cars, karts, utility carts,
subways, monoraiis

Automotive Parts
Wheels for passenger cars, trucks, buses

10

Diversified Products
Industrial products

Belts

» Steet cord conveyor befts
* Fabric conveyor belts

* Belt-related commodities
* Pipe conveyor systems

Hoses

* Braided hoses

¢ Hydraulic hoses

* Automohile hoses

Antivibration and
noise-insulating materials
* Air springs

¢ Dampers

* Noise-insulating systems

Waterproofing materials

» Waler stoppers

= Waterproof sheets for civil
engineering

Rubber tracks
inffatable rubber dams
Mutti-rubber bearings

Marine products
* Marine fenders
* Marine hoses

* Dredging hoses
* Oil booms

» Silt barriers

Antivibration components
For vehicles, railway cars,
industrial machinery




Financial highlights

Bridgestone Corporation and Subsidiaries

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Net sales

Net income

Total assets
Shareholders' equity
Capital expenditure

Per share in yen and U.S. dollars
Net income

Basic

Diluted
Cash divigends

Millons of yen
2005 2004
¥2,691,376 ¥ 2,416,685
180,796 114.453
2,709,962 2,333,708
1,128,597 934.981
203,670 161,000
¥ 226.92 ¥ 138.96
226.86 138.94
24.00 19.00

Percent change

2005 /2004
+11.4
+58.0
+16.1
+20.7

+6.6

+63.3
+63.3
+26.3

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2005
522,794,749
1,531,261
22,952,164
9,558,711
1,724,994

8 1.92
1.92
0.20

Note: Solely for the convenience of readers, the Japanese yen amounts in this annual report are translated into U.S. dellars al the rate of ¥118.07 t0 S1, the

approximate year-end rate.

Chemical products

Building materials and equipment

* FRP panel water 1anks

» Unit flooring systems

 Steel fiber for concrete reinforcement

* Rooiing materials

* Linit bath systems

* Polybutylene pipes and fitting for
plumbing sysiems

+ Sealing materials {or buildings
and housing

Thermal insulating polyurethane
foam products
For general building, housing

Flexible polyurethane foam products
For bedding, fumiture, vehicles, industry

Ceramic foam

Electro-materials

Office equipment componemns

* Semiconductive rollers

« Other semiconductive components

Performance film products

» Performance fims for plasma
display panels

¢ Photovoltaic module encapsulants

* Interlayer adhesive films for
laminated glass

Sporting goods
* Golf balls

* Golf clubs

* Tennis shoes

* Tennis rackets
* Tennis balls

* Golf swing diagnostic system

Bicycles

Other products

Purebeta ceramic dummy wafers,
holders, rings, heaters, electrodes

and other items

For semiconductor manufacturing

Bridgestone annual report 2005 |
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Up another gear

We faced a highly challenging business environment during 2005. We posted
another year of record sales and profits, despite raw materials costs increasing
steeply. As the successor to Shigeo Watanabe, | am pleased to be able to debut
with a report about a solid performance in 2005. Outlined below is a summary of
the direction | plan to take as | guide Bridgestone over the next few years.

Business review of 2005

In 2005 we benefited from higher demand for our
products across Japan, the Americas, Europe and Asia.
We focused ot introducing innovative and appealing
products, building global production capacity, raising
productivity and enhancing logistical efficiency.
Consolidated net sales advanced 11% over the
previcus year to ¥2,681.4 hilion ($22.8 billion).

We were able to offset in part the stegp increases in raw
material and other input costs with volurme gains and
improved product mix. Operating income rose 8% 10
¥213.9 bilion ($1,811 milion). Net income increased
58% 10 ¥180.8 bilion (1,531 million). This increase was
due mainly to an extraordinary gain of ¥78.6 bilion ($665
milion} arising mostly from the return to the Japanese
govemment of the substitutional portion of an employee
pension plan covering Bridgestone Corporation and
several consolidated Japanese subsidiaries.

Both our primary business segments performed well.
The tire segment posted a 5% gain in operating income
on 12% sales growth. The eamings contribution from
this sales growth offset in part the adverse effect on




Shoshi Arakawa
Charman of the Board, CEO and President

earnings of rising raw material costs. We worked 1o
maximize their sales momenium by introducing
appealing new products worldwicde, increasing
marketing efforts and improving product mix. Strong
demand in overseas markets also contributed to the
sales growth.

The diversified products segment recorded a 26%
increase in operating income on 10% growth in sales.
Business was especially strong in building materials
gperations in the U.S. and precision compeonents for
office equipment in Japan.

Performance by geographic segment was mixed. In
Japan, sales rose 9% while operating income
increased 5%. In the tire business. domestic sales and
exports both generated volume growth. Precision
components for office equipment constituted a high-
growth area. In the Americas. a 46% gain in cperating
income was posted on a 14% growth in sales. This
reflected efforts within the region to address raw
material costs through a combination of enhanced
gfficiencies and pricing. Despite a 13% gain in sales,
operating income declined 11% in Europe. This mainly

reflectad the impact of significantly higher raw material
costs. Sales in other regions expanded 23% due io
aggressive marketing, generating a 19% gan in
cperating income,

The subsidiary that manufactures and sells tires in North
America posied an extraordinary loss of $240 million
(¥26.5 bilion) due mainly to a settlement with Ford
Motor Company which resolved all financial claims
between the two companies ansing from Firestone's
August 2000 voluntary safety recall and Ford's May
2001 tire replacernent program. This drew a line under
1hese problems, leaving our business in the Americas
on a solid recovery track. | believe that our U.S.
operations are now in a good position to expand going
forward, and accordingly, the Companies recognized
deferred tax assets through reversal of a previously
established valuation allowance. Tax gains of ¥40.9
billion ($346 mition) in line wath this recognition have
been inclucied in income taxes.

For a more detailed review of our performance in 2005,

please refer to the Management's discussion & analysis
section {pp. 40-45).

Bndgesiore annual report 2005 |
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Targeting a global pole position

My predecessor faced many tough issues five years
ago when he became Chairman of the Board, CEO
and President. | believe that ha successfully solved
these issues during his tenure. | inherit from him a
healthy enterprise with a good foundation laid for
future business development.

My main goal while | am in this job is to make

Bridgestone the world leader in name and substance.

The Bridgestone Group is already the world’s largest
tire and rubber products company by sales. In this
sense, we have already achieved the top position in
name, However, | want to help our company take the
next jump so that we become the acknowledged
industry leader in tires and rubber products
worldwide by other performance and quality
parameters. To attain this goal, we must add higher
value across all aspects of our operaticns. | plan {0
propose and lead internal reform processes so that
we can clear this challenging hurdle.

Returning to first principles

The modern business world is fiercely competitive
and awash with information. In this kind of
environment, | believe that the best way forward is to
go back to basics. In other words, it is important to
understand the quintessential nature of each
challenge facing us through a deep awareness of
fundamental business principles before making
decisions. We need to return to first principles by
concentrating on providing the customer with quality,
which is just one critical aspect.

Thus, | ervision reforms maoving in two parallel
streams. At the level of individual employees, we
need to change up to a higher-value corporate
mindset. We must also introduce reforms at the
organizational level to ensure that all our management
systems and processes deliver greater value in an
increasingly glcbalized commercial environment. | see
such reforms as an integral part of maintaining and
boosting our top-line and bottom-line growth.

In terms of changing mindsets, | believe that for
Bridgestene to attain leading global status we need
to adhere more closely to first principles. First, we

must focus intently on what we needto do as a
manufacturer. Fundamenially, our job is to create
products and services that generate customer
satisfaction. This process involves understanding
customer requirements - needs as well as desires -
and then designing, developing, manufacturing and
selling products as well as creating services to satisfy
our customers. When we do these things well we
create value in the form of customer satisfaction. In
return, Bridgestone makes a profit. | firmly believe
that if our 123,000-plus employees around the world
all apply such principles on a daily basis, we can
confidently expect {o boost Bridgestone's ravenue
and profit substantially.

We also need to look afresh at our organizational
structures to enhance the value that we add for
customers. Large companies have a tendency o
become vertically sectionalized, with divisions focusing
oo heavily on their own financial targets. In fact,
however, the kay is for all parts of the company to
concentrate on serving the customer better. In other
words, the right question is what business mode! will
best help us satisfy our customers. My plan is to insert
more harizontal links within the global Bridgestone
crganization so that we can boost customer-oriented
cooperation between divisions and thereby enhance
the value we add as a company.

Building a dynamic and truly global
management structure

The tire business is a global industry with strong local
characteristics, and this is true for both the original
equipment and replacement tire markets. Qur
challenge today is to reform the management
systems of ihe Bridgestone Group so that we can
thrive in a fast-paced and ever-changing world. The
core model that we will adopt is one of a global
headquarters to set basic policies and overall
strategy, with each regional or product market
pursuing goals in light of local tire culture and
business conditions.

Four core policies to guide reform processes
We will be guided by four key policies as we
implement the reforms that | have outlined above.




Always strive for even higher level, world-class
products and services

The Bridgestone approach is about constantly
striving 1o take the quality of our products and
services to the next level.

Never complacent and never satisfied, we use the most
advanced technology to develop world-class producis
and services. By working to keep ourselves at the
forefront of technology. we will create ever-increasing
opportunities to expand the business development
prospects of our core operations. Put simply, we go
where others cannol easily follow. | aim to deepen the
entire Bridgestone Group’s commitment to continuous
improvement in the quality of all our products, services
and business processes and ensure that this
commitment is parl of cur everyday business reality.

Business domain expansion

based on defined long-term sirateqy

Vertical integration is one of Bridgestone's greatest
operational strengths. In the tire business, we own fully
integrated development, production and sales
operations spanning all stages of tire production.
including natural rubber, synthetic rubber, carbon black
and steel cord. Our company-owned and franchised tire
retail network is one of the largest in the world. We also
possess integrated development, production and sales
cperations in businesses other than tires. Our challenge
going forward is 10 leverage our depth of expertise to
expand into peripheral areas with new busingss models
that incorporate systems and solutions.

Moving toward truly global management

within an SBU-based structure

My aim is to engineer a transition toward a global
management struclure based around strategic business
units {SBUs) that focus Bridgestone Group assets in
particuiar product markets or geographic regions. My
plan is 1o reorganize the Bridgestone Group into an
5BU-based structure. The planning for this shift is
ongoing, and we expect to make the new structure
operational during 2006. Each SBU wili be granted
substantial operational autherity and responsibility. |
believe that the new system will enable us to iImplement
global pclicies and strategy mare quickly at the key
levels of both customers and markets.

Optimized group-level managernent

based on cur Mid-term Management Plan

Another change that | want 1o introduce involves
boosting the importance of business strategy in our
medium-term planning. Strategy formulation needs to
incorperate the strategic vision of each division, and
the plan needs 1o be reviewed on an annual basis. |
believe that we can optimize management at the
Bridgestone Group level better this way.

Continued commitment to corporate citizenship
Finally, it has always been my belief that companies can
only generate consistent long-term growth once they
have secured the trust and posttive acceptance of
customers and scciety in general. On the environmental,
social and community fronts Bridgestone is active in
many different spheres. Our quest to make continual
and incremental improvements in our corporate
governance, compliance and enviranmental
performance is but one aspect of our overarching
commitment to make a better contributicn to society.

“Senving society with superior guality” is the mission
laid down for us by our founder. We must therefore
aim to achieve the highest standards in all of these
fields. The larger perspective is just as impertant as
meeting short-term earnings growth targets. Our job
should always be to provide the best quality in the
broader interests of scciety,

We expect 20086 1o provide even harsher market
conditions than the past year. Bui this year we embark
on a fresh start with our sights set on becorning the
acknowledged global industry leader, | hope to eam the
trust and support of all shareholders, customers,
employees and other Bridgestone Group siakeholders
through hard work and an unwavering commitment to
the policies and principles that | have described.

April 2006

Shoshi Arakawa
Chairman of the Board, CEO and President
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Sales of Blizzak snow tires
were buoyant in Japan

The market leader ofiering
superior value through an extensive
sales channel
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Tires

In the tire segment, Bridgestone's operating income in fiscal
2005 increased 5% over the previous year, to ¥167.9 billion,
while sales were up 12%, to ¥2,156.8 billion. The earnings
contribution from this sales growth offset in part the adverse
effect on earnings of rising raw material costs. Bridgesione
worked to maximize sales momentum by introducing
appeating new products worldwide, increasing marketing
efforts and improving product mix. Strong demand in
cverseas markets also contributed to the sales growth.

Japan

Sales and operating income increased over the previous year
in Japan despite rising raw material costs. A new recerd high
was posted in unit sales of tires, topping the amount
recorded in fiscal 2004, Unit exparts of tires also increased.

Sales of original equipment tires were strong, however the
situation remains difficult due to rising raw material costs and
intensifying competition. Although Bridgestone sought to
combat these problems by improving productivity, the key
lies in taking a distinctive approach that can differentiate the
company from its rivals. Bridgestone aims to achieve this by
offering superior value from various perspectives, including
replacement demand, technology develecpment, demand
from automobile companies and stable production.

Sales of replacement tires for both passenger cars and
trucks and buses exceeded initial projections. Particular
growth was posted in Blizzak snow tires as a result of the
large snowfalls at both the beginning and end of 2005.

In passenger car tires, sales of new domestic brand Playz
tirgs were strong, in line with expectations. Since these tires
target second-generation baby boomers, Bridgestone
decided to create a comfort-oriented tire that would
stimulate the interest of this group. To achieve this, “Cross
Functional Teams” transcended traditional departmental
barders toc promote an integrated start-10-finish development
process from planning, marketing and product planning to
manufacturing, marketing and sales. The resulting product




has been very successful with this market segment. In
truck and bus tires, sales of Ecopia tires, which aid in fuel
eccnomy, were robust.

Competitive advantage

Cne of Bridgestone's greatest strengths in Japan Is its
excellent sales channel which has been put together over
the years. Around 1,200 stores make up the tire sales
network, including 120 Cockpit shops, 450 Tire Kan shops
and 630 Mr. Tire Man shops. A scrap-and-build policy has
been implemented at these sites 1c ensure the ultimate in
satisfaction. With the objective of reinforcing domestic sales,
Bridgestone will work not only to holster sales volume but
also to provide products and services of a very high quality
through its extensive family channel. For example,
Bridgestone intends to enhance its Cockpit stores with an
emphasis on style, sports and imported cars. Customized
products and services will also be provided to ensure
customer needs are met. Bridgestone will iook into the
possihility of expanding this store network as well as
strengthening relationships with major independent tira shops.

In the truck and bus tire business, besides delivering top
prodlucts, Bridgestone is promoting a “tire solutions” service
for customers through a nationwide network of 2,600 stores
and sales outlets. A total of 940 of these stores form the
Bridgestone Service Network {BSN). which provides a 24-hour
tire repair service via a call-center for registered customers. In
2005 alone. around 25,000 calls were received. This unique
senvice has fast become a strength of the company.

The year ahead

The domestic replacement tire market has remained flat at
arcund 70 milkon units since 2000. Brdgestone seeks to
increase sales of high-value-added, high-profit products in
this market in the {uture, with high hopes for the success of
Playz tires. Bridgesione runilat tires are used on certan cars
in Japan at present, but once they become maore popular.
this 1s expected 1o contribute to enhanced sales of
replacement tires In the future.

Showcasing a stylish
Cockpit shop

Playz tiras release oxhibition

Bridgestone exhibition at the Tokyo
Motor Show

With an enhanced network and brand awareness, combined
with high quality products and cutstanding staff, Bridgestone
Japan is poised for a successiul 2006. The company plans
to introduce a range of new tires to make the most of all
market opportunities, While striving to maimtain a high market
share, Bridgestone aims to maximize profits through an
improved product mix.
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" Driving persistent growth via a
better brand and product mix

Above; Bidgesions Americas headquarters

Below: Bridgestone's truck and bus tires
have received high acclaim in the
Americas

18

The Americas

Bricigestone Firgstone North American Tire (BFNT) increased
both sales and operating income (when certain special legal
expenses and the Ford settlement are excluded) in the face of
unprecedented increases in raw material costs. The
improvement can be attributed to increased demand; product
price increases; the introduction of new, higher margin
products; and improved mix. Overall unit sales of replacement
tire and original equipment tires for passenger cars and light
trucks in North America increased approximately 1% in 2005,
Unit sales of replacement tires for passenger cars and light
trucks in North America increased in both Bridgestone and
Firestone-brand tires, and in the Fuzion line. Overall original
equipment consumer unit sales were slightly lower than the
same period in the prior year. Total market share in the
consumer replacement segment was up slightly from 2004,
Consumer ariginal equipment’s performance translates to a
slight drop in share from the pravious year.

Cverall unit sales of truck and bus replacement and original
equipment tires in North America increased 4% during 2005.
Due to strong demand exceeding supply capacity,
replacermnent unit sales declined slightly to allow BFNT to fulfiil
original equipment contractual obligations. The decrease in
replacement sales was primarily in Dayton brand tires in
order {0 support the company’s strategic distribution
partners, which emphasize the Bridgestone and Firestone
brands. Criginal equiprment truck and bus tire sales
increased due to the ongoing strength of the North American
trucking industry. Toward the end of 2005, increased truck
production was fuelled by “pre-buy” activities in anticipation
of new environmental regulations in 2007. Truck and bus tire
market share in North America was slightly lower than the
previous year. This reflects continued growth in the market
beyond the Bridgestone Group’s capacity to supply.

Bridgestone Firestone Latin American Tire Operations (BFLA)
showed strong sales growth in each of its companies in the
region, based on both volume and increased selling prices. The
companies worked very hard to mitigate a substantial portion of
the effect of the dramatic increases in raw material costs through
operational efficiencies and other cost control measures.




Competitive edge

BFNT is Bridgestone Americas’ North American tire
manufacturing and wholesaling operation, which traces its
roots back to the Firestone Tire & Rubber Company founded
over 105 years ago. It has many strengths, including
substantial manufacturing operations. the maost effective
logistics distribution network in the industry. products which
are on a par with or better than the best competilive
products, and an extremely effective retail network which
consists of both dealers and Bridgestons Americas’ company
owned steres on the consumer side and refationships with
fleets and truck stops on the truck and bus side. BFNT's
original equipment business is solid, and management has
intentionally managed original equipment market share.
focusing on fitments with an improved profit and product mix.
Brand awareness of the Firestone brand is very high, with
growth in awareness of the Bridgestone brand a top priority.
BFNT is in a position to command a premium price for its
Bridgestone brand products, while providing value conscious
customers with producis bearing the Firestone name.

BFLA is an operating unit of Bricigestone Americas
consisting of six manufacturing and sales subsidiaries in
Mexico, Argentina, Brazil, Chile, Costa Rica. and Venezuela,
The BFLA presence is strong in Latin America, having been
one of the first international tire manufacturers t¢ support
that market. BFLA has the largest number of points of sale of
any tire manufacturer in the region, which supports the
expansion of the Companies’ presence throughout Latin
America. The Firestone brand has strong brand recognition
and lovalty in the region and the Comparies are enhancing
the premium brand image of Bridgestone.

Objectives met

Bridgestone Amaricas has been working to increase sales of
its two major brands in the Americas—Bridgestone and
Firestone—on both the consumer and the truck and bus
side. Sales of these two brands in the consumer
replacement segment accounted for almost 60% of overall
North American replacement unit sales in 2005. It also

aimed at the truck and bus market. Due to the continuing
shortage of truck and bus tires, sales in both the
replacement and original equipment channels were
managed to ensure that original equipment contractual
commitments were honored. Truck and bus replacement
unit sales decreased slightly in order 1o achieve this, with the
primary reduction occurring in the Dayton brand.

A major objective established for 2005 was a commitment
that BFNT would become profitable at the profit-beiore-tax
level. Excluding certain special legal expenses and a one-
lime charge in connection with the settlernent of all
cutstanding financial issues between the company and the
Ford Motor Company, this goal was achieved.

Overcoming challenges

While Bridgestone Americas expects to experience growth in
sales across all its business units in 2006. driven by both higher
prices and better brand and preduct mix, significant challenges
will inClude the persistent increase in raw material costs,
including natural rubber and crude cil, and the continuing
increase in medical and healthcare costs. It will work to offset,
in part, these increases with operational efiiciencies and better
brand and product mix, Unfortunately, these challenges are
expected 1o mitigate the positive contributions derived from the
growing market for tires.

%
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worked to improve mix within channels by growing sales of
high rim diameter consumer tires and new tire products

Bricgestone Americas'
company-owned stores

Nationally acclaimed Crivers Edge safety
program in the United States
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with its runflat tires
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higher added value
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Europe

Performance in Europe was strong in 2005. Unit sales of
passenger car and light truck tires increased in the original
equipment and replacement sectors. Sales of snow tires
and high-performance tires were particularly robust. Unit
sales of truck and bus tires also increased, led by growth
in the criginal equipment sector.

Flat market demand in car tires was a key trend in Europe
in 2005, A drop in summer tire demand was offset by an
increase in wirtter tire demand. In truck and bus tires, the
Eurcpean replacement market demand fell by aimost 4%.
Production of passenger cars in Europe was 1% below the
previous year but new registrations were in line with those
of the previous year.

Despite difficult market conditions, Bridgestone Europe
NV/SA (BSEU) was able to increase net sales by 10% versus
the previous year, reflecting an increase in unit volume plus
price and product mix improvement. Operating income,
however, declined 6% due to the negative impact of higher
raw rmaterial costs, which could not be fully compensated by
increased selling price or improved mix.

Sales of Bridgestone brand car tires were strong in both
original equipment and replacement markets. Criginal
equipment approvals increased in high performance and
runflat segments, and increased original equipment filments
in recent years have acted as a catalyst to create higher
demand for Bridgestone brand tires.

Constantly improving

During the year, we invested in Technical Centre Rome (TCE)
by expanding that facility through the addition of new testing
machines and the latest tire building machinery in a pilot plant
setting. The nearby New European Proving Ground was
cpened in 2004 and will be further developed to include wet
skid pad circles, a groove wandering lane. and other new
surfaces by 2006.

In June 2005, the first purpose-built Training and
Communication Gentre was inaugurated in Aprilia, near




Rome, faly. This centre is being used by the new Furcpean
Training Division to provide training and development 1o staff
and customers.

Ground preparation progressed well on the site of the next
European Passenger Tire plant. Located near Tatabanya in
Hungary, the plant will start production in early 2008 using
Bridgestone's revolutionary new BIRD production system.
BIRD (Bridgestone Innovative and Rational Development) is
the first tire production system that autormates the entire
manufacturing sequence from the processing of materials to
the inspection of the finished tires. Meanwhile, production
capacity was increased at our plant in Poland.

Towards enhanced performance

Key objectives during 2005 were Lo increase market share in
all product groups, and to improve the product mix by selling
a greater volume of higher value tires. The strategies to
achieve these goals included improving our channel base in
the replacement tire sector with increased numbers of
company owned stores and expansion of the franchise
networks, First Stop and Truckpeint. In the original
equipment sectar, BSEL worked to improve sales mix by
introducing new products and expanding sales to large
fleets. These efforts were supported by innovative promotion
and brand building activities.

BSEU also sought to create a system that ensures greater
efficiency in logistics. To this end, the Brussels headguarters
has taken on the role of integrated management of inventory,
which was previously handled by each sales company

T | R

First Stop “"Model store” in Zaventern, Belgium  Think Betore You Drive campaign

independently. Efforts were also made to reduce costs
through more efficient physical logistics.

Elsewhere, efforls were made 10 increase brand awareness of
and trust in the Bridgestone brand. During the year, a global
safely campaign was initiated in Europe in collaboration with
the FIA Foundation. The campaign, titled “Think Before You
Drive," is focused cn raising the awareness of motorists of
various road safety issues including correct tire maintenance. It
was promoted strongly at several high profile events including
Formula 1 Grand Prix, and is scheduled 1o continue for 3 years.

Looking ahead

All tire manufacturers are affected by the increasing cost of
raw matarials. BSEU's biggest challenge is to offset these
increasas with operational efficiencies and better brand and
product mix. Unfortunately, the rising raw material costs are
expectad to mitigate the positive contributions derived from
the growing market for tirgs. Al the same time, while
maintaining or enhancing guality, cost cutiing measures are
being taken both in manufacturing and distribution areas.

The Eurcpean market is forecast 10 grow slightly in 2006,
and BSEU expects to increase its sales in both original
equipmeant and replacement markets, As the tire market in
Eurcpe is highly advanced, consumers demand a high level
of performance and quality in their tires. In line with these
needs, emphasis will be placed on boosting sales of high-
performance tires and premium criginal equipment tires. By
doing so, Bridgestione can prove its technological prowess
{0 the markel while also boosting brand awareness. As a
result of these activities, Bridgestone expects an increase
in demand for Bridgestone brand tires and consequently
increased sales in the Eurcpean market on the whaole in 2008.
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Demand for off-the-road tires
has skyrocketed
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markets around the world with
unrivalled quality
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Other regions

Sales In other regions increased over the previous year,
particularly in the oil-producing nations and the BRICs (Brazil,
Russia, India and China). The Bridgestone Group includes
factories in all of BRIC countries except Russia, and this
glebal production system provides a strong foundation to
expand sales by meeting local customer needs.

In line with expectations, between 30~40% growth was
posted in the Chinese market despite mounting challenges
there. Bridgestone has stronger sales momentum than
market growth, especially in the truck and bus tire market.
In order o serve the fast-growing Chinese demand,
Bridgestone plans to begin operation of the new plants in
Huizhou in China's Guangdong Province in 2007: one to
produce radial tires for trucks and buses and the other to
produce steel cord for these tires. Bridgestone has also
opened a steel cord plant in Shenyang, China. This plant
began producing steel cord for truck and bus radials in
August 2005. Production capacity is expected to reach 70
tons per day by the end of 2007,

Elsewhere, the F1 race in Shanghai was held for the
second consecutive year, boosting awareness of the
Bridgestone brand.

Also, in response to growing global demand for truck and
bus radial tires, the Chonburi Plant in Thailand will expand
production capacity for these tires. The company began
construction of the new buildings during 2005, with an eye
to increasing daily production capacity to a total of 7,500
tires by the first half of 2008.

Plans for 2006

Moving ahead, remaining challenges for the Chinese market
include enhancing the sales channel for replacement tires
and introducing new products that exploit Bridgestone's
competitive edge in technology and meet the demand
growth. Bridgestone also seeks tc expand its origina
equipment business in passenger car tires so as to establish
a solid brand presence in the market.




Another area of attention is how tc best utilize the raw

materials China has lo offer. This requires a clear evaluation A piant in Thalland supplying its tices to
of several material makers, In July 2006, Bridgestone will domestic and overseas markets
begin operations at a new technical center in China which

will drive speedy R&D to ensure the supply of excellent

quality raw materials to the company’s production facilities

in China. Bridgestone will also start construction of a new

synthetic rubber plant in China in Huizhou, Guangdong

province, with operations expected to start in the first half

of 2008. Annual production capacily of around 50,000 tons

at full capacity is expected. This new factory will be built to

. i ‘ , Above: Part of the China sales channel
meet growing demand in Asla as well as that required for Below: A Bridgestone tire shop in India

the Chinese market.

In crder to strengthen its local research and development
capabilities, Bridgestone also plans to establish a new
proving ground in China. set to open in 2007. It will enable
the swift production of original equipment and repiacement
tires for the Chinese market. This facility will aiso be utilized
for local sales promoticn activities and training for people
both inside and outside the company.

Sales in oil-producing nations have been steady owing

to rising oil prices. Ancther key reason for the strong
performance is the improvement in operations at the local
level. Bridgesione intends to further expand sales in these
nations in the coming year, Meanwnile, the company realized
double-digit growth in Russia in 2005 with around 1 million
units sold. Plans are to drive further growth there in 2006.

Elsewhere, demand has been growing globally for off-the-road
{OR) tires, so much so that there is a shortage of production
and manufacturers. In response, Bridgestone has begun
construction of a new building at its Shimonoseki Plant to
boost production capacity of OR (mining) radiat tires, with
completicn scheduled for the end of 2006. Plans are tc
expand capacity by 20% by the start of 2008 relative to
current levels. Bridgestone will also increase prodiuction of
small and medium OR radial tires for construction machines
at its Hofu Plant by the middle of 2006.

BRIDGESTOMN

!
7
e

Opening ceremony at the new steel cord plant in
Shenyang, China
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High-pressure
hydraulic hoses
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Diversified products

Bridgestone's diversified products segment consists of varous
products of the company’s chemical and industrial business
unit, the diversified products business of Bridgestone
Americas, bicycles and sporting goods.

In this segment, Bridgestone’s operating income in fiscal 2005
increased 26% over the previous year, to ¥45.9 billion, while
sales rose 10% {0 ¥564.8 hilion. Business was especially
strong in the building materials operations in the United States
and in precision components for office equipment in Japan.

Chemical and industrial products

Over the past few years, Bridgestone has aggressively
implemented a policy of concentration and selection in the
chemical and industrial products business, which has led
to positive results despite increasing raw material costs.
Sales in this segment in 2005 coniinued to grow over the
prior year, whila operating income actually exceeded the
growth in sales.

Bridgestone also worked to enhance cost competitiveness
and to create the optimum supply system in Japan and
overseas. 1o this end, production was increased in China,
while the spectrum of products manufactured at the
Yokohama Plant was narrowed to those items mandated for
production in Japan by the Japanese autharities. This has
resulted in lower costs, consistent quality and improved
supply efficiencies. Further, although competition is fierce in
China for antivibration rubber, seat pads, fenders, rubber
tracks for farming equipment and hoses due 1o the number
of manufaciurers, Bridgestone holds a competitive advantage
through the use of superior quality materials and facilities.

In China, where the autcmobile market is growing rapidly,
Bridgestone strengthened production capacity during the
period by stanting operations at a plant for automotive
antivibration rubber in Changzhou, Jiangsu, and at a plant
for urethane foam for car seats in Guangzhou, Guangdong.
Meanwhile, Bridgestone is building a plant in Poland for

the production of rubber tracks to meet rising demand
brought about by growing demand for construction vehicles
worldwide. Operations there are expected to get underway
in 20086.




Facing challenges

Relative to the tire segment, diversified products are still a
small portion of Bridgestone's profit porticiio, but it is
growing. Besides enhancing basic technclogies for the
purpose of generating naw products, attention will be shifted
10 research and development o further growth.

In the coming years, Bridgestone expects steady growth

in the following two key areas: safety and the environment.
In safety, Bridgestone has been a market leader for many
years in muiti-rubber bearings. These types of rubber
products, when installed under a builcfing, help to minimize
vibration during an earthguake. In line with heightenad
awareness lowards the need for quake-resistant structures
in Japan. demand for multi-rubber bearings is projected to
rise significantly in the near future.

A key Bridgestone product for the protection of the
ervironment is EVA (ethylene vinyl acetate) film, which 1s
used as an adhesive film for solar modules to keep the
deterioration of the solar panel to a minimum. Photovoltaic
power generation is becoming increasingly important as

a form of clean energy, and accordingly. demand for

solar moedules has skyrocketed worldwide. In response.
Bridgestone expanded production capacity for EVA film to
800 - 1,000 tons a manth at the lwata Plant during 2005.

The development of non-CFC heat insulation materials is
another area aimad at environmental protection. Because
the materials do not contain CFCs. demand for these
products is expacted to increase significantly n the
Ceming years.

Performance at Bridgestone Americas

The diversified products business in the Americas is made
up primarily of roofing and building materials, industrial air
springs, finers and textiles, and synthetic rubber and
polymers. Bridgestone Americas is the market leader in
rubber roofing material, as well as air springs. in the North
American market. Having completed construction of the
Polish air spring plant, Bridgestene Americas s now poised
to embark on growth in the European markel. Other efforts
include developing a market presence for air springs in China
and Latin America. While its fibers and textiles are sold
primarily inter-company Lo BFNT, some of these products
are also sold 1o third parties, and company 1extiles have

Antivibration rubber producis

Multi-rubber bearings

been used in products as diverse as backpacks and tents
for use in the desert.

Sales at Bridgestone Amernicas diversified praducts
companigs continued their strong growth over the pricr year.
Both the reofing and polymers businesses enjoyed strength
in their market segments. and the roofing business
expanded its product offerings into metal roofing during
2005. Increased prices helped offset the impact of rising raw
material costs which affected these businesses as well.

The roofing business expandsd its product offerings in 2005
1o include metal roofing, and the industrial products business
{primarily air springs) is primed for considerable growth in the
European market.

Based on current circumstances, Bridgestone Arnericas
expects sales in its diversified products busingsses to
continue to grow, on the strength of both volume and price
increases. These businesses will evaluate and implement all
appropriate countermeasures if the increases in raw materiat
costs cannot be mitigated through cost-cuiting measures
and increasing operational efficiencies.

Bridgestone is currently striving to maximize synergies
with BFS Diversified Products (BFDP) and these efforts
are starting to bear frult. As an example. BFDP has been
receiving orders from sales companies in Japan for roofing
materials, Bridgestone and BFDP have been exchanging
technologies in various areas such as antivibration rubber
and air springs.

Bicycles

The bicycle industry continues Lo face tough conditions.
Although the volume of imports from China levelled off for
the first time in years, the proportion of imperts still remained
high as domestic production fell well below the previous
year. An increase in accidents partly caused by the rise in
imports of cheap, poor quality products prompted the Japan
Bicycle Association (JBA) to issue a regulation in 2004
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The new safety-conscious bicycle for

children called Angelino

One step ahead of the rest with a
sophisticated range of bicycles
and sporting goods

Bicycle taxi used at the Word Expo in Aichi
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recommending that all imported bicycles comply with the
Bicycle Association Approved (BAA} mark. Although there
are differences hetween manufacturers, improvements are
being mads. In line with the new product changeover,
Bridgestone Cycle has adapted almost all of its bicycles to
comply with the BAA standards. Sports-type bicycles will be
modified once JBA has issued pertinent standards for them.

Sales of domestically produced electric powered bicycles
and gear-speed bicycles exceeded the previous year, driving
domestic sales of high quality products. Meanwhile, an
increase in the average price of bicycles helped boost sales
beyond initial forecasts. Sales of sophisticated, high-value-
added bicycles progressed in fine with plans, but intensifying
competition stifled sales in low-end items.

Goals, strategies and progress

Product strategies during the period included: consolidation
of basic products, cultivation of identified demand and
creation of new demand. These were complemented by
sales promotion strategies to enhance spring dermand,
reinforce internet advertising and build a more sports
oriented image.

All three product strategies have developed in line with plans.
Bridgestone released Angelino, the new safety-conscious
bicycle for children, in February after careful analysis to
ensure the ultimate in child safety. The company also
enhanced the high-demand Abios, a new concept sports
bicycle for adults. Other fashion-conscious bicycles such as
Veltro and Vegas have also been developed.

In terms of sales promotion strategies, Bridgestone
introduced a spring campaign for the Albelt bicycle, with
excellent results. A major advertising campaign for Angelino
conducted on the internet helped to generate a marked
jump in sales. Various victories for teams using the
Bridgestone Anchor bicycle both in Japan and overseas
strengthened its sporty image.

New technologies
After many practical tests and scientific analysis, Bridgestone
devised the Angeling bicycle with a child's safety foramaost in




Left: Bridgestone golf test
course in Chichibu

Right: Ai Mivazato uses
Bridgestone’s sparting goods

mind. Besides the Super Angel Seat for extra security and
comiorl, the user can lock the handle bar with a lever without
releasing the hands from the handle bar,

The electric powered bicycle Assista, which runs on lithium ion
hatteries, has appealed to a wide range of consumers. Not only
is it small and light, but it can operate for long distances without
stopping. The bicycle was offered as a "taxi” at the World Expo
in Aichi, displaying Bridgestone’s technelogical prowess.

Moving ahead

Bridgestone aims 10 increase profits and market sharg in the
bicycle segment by devaloping new technologies and expanding
sales of high-value-added products. Elsewhere, Bridgestone
intends to boost production capacity at its factory in China to
reinforce its global production system. New businesses marked
for development include one for cubic parking spaces.

A new “dermand creation” project will be initiated to enhance
sales of key bicycles such as Albelt and Lococo, which are
already very popular. Efforis will also be made to expand sales
of Veltro and Vegas. For electric powered bicycles, Bridgestone
aims to improve its staying power through the development of an
"auto-eco” feature. Bridgestone will also promote varicus safety
related products such as a child helmet and seat to boost sales.

Sporting goods

in 2005, the market for golf producis continued to be very
competitive, with Bridgestone posting negative growth of
around 5%. Nevertheless, golf subscriptions have been on the
rise since October, a reflection of a brightening ecanomy,
which is expecied to have positive effects for the company.
The tennis market has remained relatively unchanged from the
previous year, down 1%.

Overall sales in this segment exceeded the previous year by
6% amid a contracting market. The new X series clubs and the
V-iQ series continued to sell well, and Bridgestone maintained
its top market share position with X-01 balls. Market share gains
were also posted with the newly released SuperNEWINGiv330.
Sales of golf shoes, which give the user exira poise to hit the
balt further, grew while Bridgestone further promoted the
TOURSTAGE brand of apparel with successiul results. Two

sales companies in East and West Japan were consolidated
during the period to boost sales efficiency. which has given
Bricgestone a competitive sales advantage over its rivals.

Review of 2005 goals

Bridgestone set several goals for 2005 and implemented a
serles of programs aimed at achieving them. Objectives
included: reinforcing the number one market share position in
premium golf balls in Japan; becoming the top golf business
in Japan, increasing profitability in the sports supplies
business; restructuring the tennis business and U.S. golf
operations; providing high quality products that meat needs
in a timely manner; and increasing sales and market share
through pre-emptive action.

Sales surpassed the previcus year by 2% and targets were
cleared. Bridgestone also captured top position in the industry
in terms of product appeal and sales capability. This brought
the company one step closer to being outright leader in the
field. However, restructuring efforts in U.S. operations need 10
be accelerated, aiming for completion next fiscal year.

Future objectives

Bridgestone has outlined certain objectives to achieve in the
coming year: to be number one in all price ranges of goit
balls in Japan; to secure top market share in clubs in Japan;
1o boost profitability of sports supplies and expand intc
peripheral areas; to balance income and expenditurg in the
lennis business and work towards business expansion; and
to complete restructuring and expansion of U.S. operations.

Prospects for the golf market appear bright. 70 take
advantage of this, Bridgestone aims to cutstrip the
competition by introducing a variety of new clubs such
as the V-iQ and the TOURSTAGE v10 ball.

Beginning in 2008, Al Miyazalo will participate in the U.S.
LPGA four and will use Bridgestone-made products
exclusively. With such a well-known golfer using Bridgestone
products, Bridgestone can further boost appeal in the U.S.
market. The Bridgestone Group will also support worldwide
top-class events such as the World Golf Championships
Bridgestone Invitational.
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Bridgestone Corporation and its subsidiaries’ mission of "serving society with superior quality” mandates
an unending quest to create better products, materials, technologies and production methods to fulfil
ever-changing customer requirements.

The Companies conduct R&D activities on a global basis to serve local and regional market needs. Major
technical centers, including proving grounds. are located in Tokyo (Japan), Akron (USA) and Rome (Italy).
Another major technical facility in Wuxi (China) is due to commence operations in mid-2006.

Research and development expenditures for the Companies in 2005 totaled ¥79.4 bilion ($673 milliory,
a figure equivalent to 3.0% of net salgs.

Tires

R&D programs in the tire segment share the fundamental aim of creating tires that deliver higher added
value. Besides seeking performance gains such as increased grip or durability, the Companies also
strive to develop tires that are safer, more economical, or simply easier to use and maintain. Reduced
environmenial impact is ancther key goal - one that involves R&D efforts targeting not just products,
but also the technologies and processes involved in all aspects of a tire’s life cycle, from raw material
sourcing to production, use and disposal.

During 2005, the Company launched the Playz PZ-1 range of passenger car radial tires in Japan.
This series is the first product line to be marketed under the Playz brand, whose name is a word-play
on the concept of raku in Japanese, which means simple, easy and effortless (as well as fun}. The
tires feature an original asymmetrical design built into both the tread pattern and the shape.

This structure enables the tires to easily accommodate even slight differences in the height of

the road surface, such as undulations and smalt bumps. The result is a smoother ride and greater
steering responsiveness.

In Europe, the Company completed the commercialization of the Bridgestone Support Ring runflat
systemn. This system keeps a tire functioning after loss of air pressure so that the vehicle can continue
driving safely for specified speeds and distances. The support ring consists of a lightweight metal and
rutsber structure to provide flexible support for the tire. In the event of air loss, the core ring can support
the vehicle and fix the tire bead to the rim of the tire. The system is suitable for passenger vehicles with
high-profite tires, such as sport-utility vehicles {SUVs). Toyota Motor Corporation is taking delivery of
these runflat tires for use in the latest European version of its RAV4 model.

In the commercial vehicle sector, the Company completed development of the ECCPIA M812 tire
series for light-duty trucks and buses. This tire features a modified profile and specially developed
tread rubber, both of which help to improve fuel economy as a result of significantly lower rolling
resistance. The tire is being marketed in Japan.

Other R&D programs focus on the development of advanced tire production technology. The BIRD
system, which automates the entire sequence of tire manufacturing, from processing raw matarials to
the inspection of the finished tires, has now been introduced at the Hikone Plant in Japan. Plans also calt
for its use in the Companies’ new production faciiities in Mexico and Hungary. This technology promises
tc boost the Companies’ ability to supply high-quality tires with greater productivity and flexibility.,

Research and development expenditures for the tire segment in 2005 totaled ¥65.2 hillion ($552 million).




Diversified products
R&D activities in this segment cover a diverse range of applications, the one constant being the desire
to create products that generate highar value in the form of greater cusiomer satisfaction.

Chemical and industrial products

The Company succeeded in commercializing a new type of optical film for filters used in plasma display
panel (PDP} televisions. By converting the conventional bilayer into a monctayer. this new product helps
1o reduce the overall weight of the final consumer appliance.

In the construction machinery sector, the Company launched an improved rubber track model for
tracked equipment. The innovation i this case was the development of a joint-less manufacturing
technology for rubber tracks, which results n significantly more durable tracks with a longer product life.

The Companly developed a new mass-production technique for the urethane foam padding used in car
seats based on using different densities of urethane foam in a single. simuitaneous fabrication process.
This improved production method yields toam padding that 1s hghter but just as firm, resulting in energy
savings without any loss of comtort tor passengers.

Discussing possible new chemica
products at the Yokohama Plant

Sporting goods

In goif, Bridgestone Sports Co.. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company. developed the 330 senes of dual-dimple
balls, which reduce agrial crag while mantaining i, and the V330 senes, which feature a high-capacity
energy core to magnify the effects of club head speed. Another innovation that promises to help golfers
achieve greater distances with their shots was the Tour Stage X-DRIVE club, which uses an active drive
design to facilitate a wider stnke angle and low-spin trajectory.

Bicycles

In the non-sporting sector, Bridgestone Cycle Co. Lid., a subsidiary of the Company. developed a
new bicycle model with electncally operated drive assistance. Electrically power assisted bicycles using
Iithium-on battery power packs resull n weight savings and greater endurance via the assistance
function. In the sporting secior, Brdgestone Cycle developed the Anchor RFX8, a model that 1s well
suited to comfortable long-distance biking due to its lightweaight carbon fiber irame. A flexible three-piece
structure also accommeodates different sizes.

New R&D areas

The Company 1s nvesting in new technologies ancl products based on nanotechnology. A proiotype
testing facility has now been compieted for development of Electronic Liquid Poweder, a unigue
Briclgestone technology that has great potential n low-power rewntable electronic display modules.
such as price tags.

Research and development expendiiure for the dwersified products segment in 2005 totaled ¥14.2
billion (S121 mulon).
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Governance ethos and structures

The core aim of corporate governance at the Companias (Bridgestone Gorporation (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries} is to ensure that the Companies fulfill the founding mission of “serving society with
superior guality.” The guiding principles of the Companies’ philosophy are set out in the Bridgestone
Way. Corporate governance and compliance structures function to enable senior management and the
Companies’ employees to make decisions that adhere closely to these principles. Since the Company
views corporate governance as a key element of its corporate social responsibility, these structures are
reviewed and upgraded continually to aid mission fulfilment. internal control mechanisms adopt a
centralized structure based on regulations governing business palicy administration and the extent of
company and division duties.

Separation of oversight and operations

Responsibilities for management oversight and operational management are clearly separated at the
Company. The Board of Directors is the senior body with the power 1o make top-level business
decisions and to set policies and strategy for the Companies. Its actions are overseen by shareholders
through the General Meeting of Shareholders and are subject to internal audit by the corporate auditors.
As of March 30, 2006, the Board of Directors had ten members.

Responsibility for operational management resides with corporate officers. These executives manage the
Companies” operations in different business sectors and geographic regions in accordance with policies
established by the Board of Directors. The number of corporate officars was 30 as of March 30, 2006.

Board and senior management structures

Nominess for executive appointments and executive remuneration packages for all directors and
corporate officers are determined by the Directional Personnel Compensation Committee. Selected
directors, corporate officers and divisional heads serve on this committee. Matters considered and
reported by this committea are subject to deliberation and decision by the Board of Directors or the
Board of Corporate Auditers. That helps ensure transparency and objectivity.

The Executive Committee is a sanior management body that acts in a consultative and deliberative role
for the Board of Directors. It is chaired by the President and is composed of several directors, corporate
auditors and corporate officers. Mesting regularly, it is a forum for making business decisions that do
not merit full Board consideration and for discussing a wide range of operational issues.

Internal and external audit functions

As of March 30, 2006, the Board of Corporate Auditors had six members, including three outside
auditors. No outside auditor was in the employ of any part of the Companies. The six members of the
Board of Corporate Auditors overseg the actions of directors by attending important exacutive meetings,
by listening to the status of operations, by reviewing key business documents and by visiting business
offices for auditing. The corporate auditors also meet to exchange opinions with the Chairman of the
Board as well as with the executive auditars in major demestic subsidiaries. A dedicated support staff
unit was established in January 2006 to assist the corporate auditors in the execution of thair duties.

Each of the Company’s divisions and major subsidiaries have their own intermnal audit representative. in
January 2006, the Company established an independent central function reporting directly to the CEO
10 oversee internal audits. This division smployed nine pecple as of March 30, 2006, and the Company
plans to expand its capabilities going forward. Conducted on an annual basis, internal audits target each
function, business division and major subsidiary, bath in Japan and overseas.

The Companies’ financial accounts are also subject to the approval of an independent audit, which is
carried out by professional external auditors.




Corporate ethics

The Companies have a strong, cohesive philosophy that emphasizes the prosperity that derives from
making a valuable contribution 1¢ the lives of shareholders, consumers. employees and other
stakeholders. A set of guiding principles, known as the Bridgestone Way, encourages employees to
strive to create high-guality products and to provide world-class service in the greater cause of
contributing to society.

Compliance system and structures

Sound business ethics is a core emphasis of ihe Bridgesione Way, with its call to "understand and
honor fully the ethical values, moral practices, lagal regulations of every nation and region.” The
Company has established internal compliance structures to facilitate oversight of ethical performance
and to promote ethical behavior by all employees.

A Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) is the senior executive with responsibility for operation of the compliance
system at the Company. Assisted by a full-time staff. the CCO establishes and reviews compliance
guidelines, and manages the dissemination of this information throughout the Company. Chaired by the
CCO, the Compliance Committee overseas compliance-related issues. including reporting of any
compliance violations and implementation of remedial measwres or related system improvements.

Compliance activities

Training and programs to boost awareness are a major part of compliance activities. Specific
compliance training courses are held regularly for corporate officers as well as promoted managers and
recent hires. Efforts to raise awarenass include poster campaigns and the "Compliance Handy Card,”

a pamphlet containing guidelines and practical advice that is distributed to all employees. The newly
published compliance casebook is also available for internal distribution in Japan.

The Company has established compliance-related “hotlinas” both inside the company and through an
outside law firm. These supplementary mechanisms provide confidential channels for anyone in the
Company to report compliancs violations or relatad information without prejudice to their career. The aim
is to ensure that any unethical behavior is detected soon and addressed quickly. fairly and appropriately.

The Company formulated internal guidelines on the protection of personal data in response to the
comprehensive privacy law that came into force in Japan
in April 2005. Privacy training and awareness programs

are ongoing. { Eeet iy o SREEEEED ]
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Corporate social responsibility (CSR}) refers to the need for organizations to consider the environment
and social fairness in all corporate activities and to be accountable to its stakeholders (shareholders,
customers, employees and local communities). The Companies must therefore aim to improve their
performance from economic, social and environmental standpoints.

Founders’ philosophy

In 2001, the Company formulated a new corporate philosophy known as “The Bridgastone Way” in
order to codify the company credo - “serving society with superior quality” - championed by the
company’s founder, Shojiro Ishibashi.

The Bridgestone Way exemplifies the "Spirit” that each of the Companies' employees should always

aim for and the "Missicn” the Companies have assumed. At the core of this Spirit is a fervent desire to
take price in earning the trust of customers and other stakeholders, The Companies sirive to make life
safer, more fulfiling and more enjoyable by delivering high-guality products. The ultimate goal is tc become
a company that “can take pride in having earned the trust and affection of all.”

“Serving society with superior quality” remains the unchanging undertaking of the Companies. The
Companies pursue the ultimate in quality in all their corporate activities, not just in terms of product,
service and technology. And it is people that are the driving force behind this endeavor, which is why

the Companies constantly seek to maximize the potential of each individual. As a global corporation
with responsibsilities to fulfili, the Companies actively communicate with local communities to gain
approval for business activities, while working to contribute to the development of society as a whole
and to the protection of the environment.

Management stance

Among other things, the Bridgestone Way summarizes the commitments that the Companies make to
their stakeholders and describes seven core emphases that epitomise the way that they do business.

1. Focus continuously on the future and pursue continuing growth in corporate value.

2. Be fair, honest and open in our corporate managemant.

3. Understand and honor fully the ethical values, moral practices, and legal regulations of every nation
and regicn where we cperate.

4. View ourseives though the eyes of our customers and adapt our approach responsively to exceed
their expectations.

5. Build positive momenium by nurturing capable, motivated employees who, in turn, will foster a
stronger company.

6. Take our future into our own hands by leading our industry in introducing innovative new technologies.

7. Maximize our collective strength by sharing information freely and promoting cooperation among
divisicns and companies in the Bridgestcne Group.

Our pledge to stakeholders

The Companies have outlined a series of specific commitments to all those with an interest in the Companias.

To the community: To customers: To shareholders: To business partners:  To employees:
*» Bring added benefit = Contribute to * Maximize shareholder = Concentrate on * Honor individuality,
to the community continuing advances in value through advancing mutual and provide a safe and
through support for the fundamentats of centinuing growth in interests through stimulating workplace
cultural activities and safety and in other sales and sarnings close communication envronment,
ther lic-inter ] wer | . all dealings with ; )
Drpen | besncite | csvemgien ol s cpprines
' « Fulfill our accountability fairly to all employees,
* Be proactive in = Convey our passion (o te shareholders, and * |dentity Issues of and evaluate their
working 1o protect customars through distribute eamings to common ¢oncem and performance on the
and inprove the innovative and exciting them through work together on basis of effort, as well
global environment. new kinds of value that reasonable and stable improvements to as results,
capture the imagination. dividend paymenis rasalve those issues.




Specific actions
The Company undentakes a variety of programs aimed at fulfiling its commitments to society and
stakeholders.

(1} Environmental protection activities

As one measure 1o prevent glebal warming, the Company has been installing co-generation systems at
production faciliies In Japan to cut carbon dioxide (CC.) emissions, Installation has already been compleied
at nine of these plants.

In 2005, the Company's head office, technical centers and all offices associated with its domestic plants
received 18O 14001 certification. an internationally recognized standard for environmental management.
The creation of a global environmental management system called TEAMS (Total Environmental
Advanced Management System) was a key factor in attaning the qualification. All of the Bridgestone
Group tire plants in the Amencas have achieved ISO 14001 certification as weli.

Further. all 15 of the Gompany's production facilities in Japan had achieved ulimate zero emissions by
the end of July 2005 (ulbmate zero emissions status 1s achieved when a resource recycling agreement
has been concluded with the processing company for each item of waste generaled at the plant),

Company-wide, 11 of the Company's production cormpanies and 26 plants had achieved zero
emissions by the end of June 2005 (zero emissions here refers to when the volume of waste sent to
iandfill from a facility 18 no more than 1% of the total volume of wasle generated by that plant).

In addition, envronmental impact-reduction measures are coordinated and managed on a regional basis n
Japan. the Amencas and Europe. The three regions hold an annual environmental conference to share
information on eco-related iopics and to discuss ways of accelerating the progress made at the global level.

(2) Quality assurance activities

The Action Qualty Spiral-up The 21st Century (AQS21) program. which incorporates the concept of

Six Sigma quality, was nitiated by the Company as a means to enhancing quality throughout the group.
All employees in Japan are nvolved In the program. including top managers. administrators and
supervisors. Through this program, the Company can strengthen its customer information infrastructure
based on quality. which can be a very impontant resource in the manufactunng industry, and theretyy
continuously deliver satisfaction and inspiration to customers.

in ackdition, the Company has established a gualty management system that complies with 18O
standards for quality assurance set by the international Standards Organization as well as with gualty
assurance requirements inherent in the automobile industry.

(3) Shareholder value

Besides strengthening operating foundations with a view ic propelling future business expansion. a key
policy of the Company's management 1s to constantly improve business performance in order to deliver
suitable returns to shareholders.

The Company is guick to disclose easy and comprehensible information for shareholders, investors and
financial analysts both in Japan and overseas.

{4} Fair trading

The basic policy of the Company's procurement department 1s to ensure that every employee, as a
representative of the Company in all rading activities. complies with pertinent laws and regulations, acts
in good faith and with farrness, and mamntains a healthy relaticnship with business partners.
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Company-wide

Contributing to the welfare of the community is a cnitical ethical value of the Companies (Bridgestone
Corporation {the “Company”) and its subsidiaries). The Companies worldwide encourage and support
active participation in the community, including spenserships of varicus cultural, educational and sporting
events, as well as support of numerous charitable crganizations across the globe.

On behalf of the group worldwide, the Company donated approximately ¥100 million via the Japan Red
Cross in support of relief efforts for survivors of the Indian Ocean tsunami which struck at the end of 2004.
Subsidiaries in Indonesia, Malaysia, India and Australia alse made contributions te local relief efforts, as did
their counterparts in other nations. Denations were also made by individual employees and Dy the
Companies’ sales outlets.

The Companies donated more than $1 million to the American Red Cross Hurricane Katrina response,
and more than 2,200 company-owned retail stores across the United States offered their customers a
way to lend a helping hand by serving as collection points for donations. The Company donated
$900,000 and Bridgestone Americas Holding, Inc. contributed $100,000. In addition, consumers
contributed to relief efforts at the more than 2,200 Firestone Complete Auto Care, TiresPlus, ExpertTire
and GCR Tire Centers locations, which were designated Red Cress Official Cash Denation Sites.
Bridgestone Goff Inc., a U.S. basad subsidiary of Bridgestone Sports Co., Ltd., also donated $10,000, as
did Firestone Polymers Company.

A global “Think Before You Drive” campaign launched in 2005 by the FIA Foundation and the Company
promotes simple, understandable road safety messages to drivers and car users, focusing on activities
such as seat belt and child seat usage and regularly checking tires, which can reduce the severity of injuries
in a crash or even help to prevent a crash. Those messages will be promoted in more than 40 countrigs
during 2006, which are in addition to the 20+ countries, inclucing several in Europe and Africa, Brazil and
China, running the campaign during 2005. In Japan, as part of its “tire safety project,” the Company
conducted safety education activities on *tire day” on April 8, 2008, for the third consecutive year. Also in
the United States, Bridgestone Americas has taken a leadarship role in tire and driver safety education
under both the Bridgestone and Firestone brand names. Bridgestone Americas, with the Bridgestone
brand, is the presenting sponsor of Driver's Edge, a nationally acclaimed safety program that provides
hands-on driver training to teenagers across the U.3. Bridgestone Americas, with the Firestone brand,
has launched a comprehensive safety education program featuring legendary racer Mario Andretti.

in terms of environmental activities, the Companigs are committed to teaching young people about the
importance of protecting the environment for future generations. One program designed to achieving this
awareness is an art competiticn held in Japan for the third consecutive year. The competition asks entrants
to create pictures based on an environmental theme. Over 11,200 drawings were collected during the
period, compared with about 7,100 the year before. The best 101 pictures were reproduced on the
exterior of a fuel cell car delivered to the Company by DaimlerChrysler Japan Co. Lid. The 3rd Children's
Art Ceremoeny was held on April 4, 2006 in conjunction with Bridgestene Cycle Co., Ltd. and Bridgaestone
Sports Co., Lid., with prizes awarded to the top five entries. A similar children’s drawing contest has also
bean launched in Europe, with a road safety theme,

Japan

The Company participates in fresh water ecclogical surveys at Lake Biwa, Japan's largest lake. The project
is undertaken in conjunction with the Japanese charter of the World Wide Fund for Nature (WWF).
Individuals and organizations invelved in the project share information and exchange ideas aimed at
shaping a sound and sustainable ecological balance in the lake. Meetings regarding the state of affairs are
being held at the Company’s nearby Hikone Plant. Management views this project as a modet for stepping
up company-wide awareness of the need for environmental protection.




United States

Bridgestone Americas Holding, Inc. (BSAH) and its company-owned stores, Firestone Complete Auto
Care, have partnered with Keep America Beautiful since 2002 for the Great America Cleanup, which is the
nation's largest annual community improvement and beautification program. Every year, many of our
teammates and employees fan out across the country to make local communities cleaner.

The Bridgestone Firestone Trust Fund is committed to the dreams and visions of individuals who may not
have the means o realize them on their own. The fund makes charitable gifts to national, regional and local
initiatives which have a special focus on improving the lives of children, investing in education and
protecting and preserving the environment. in 2005, many BSAH personnel volunteered their time, talent
and resources to support a wide variety of charitable projects and community crganizations. In 2005, the
fund denated over $3.7 million {o a wide variety of programs, including educational purposes such as
schelarships; to health and welfare programs, including the American Heart Association: to local civic and
community activities. such as the Akron Battered Women's Shelter: and to programs supponting culture
and arts, including contributions to various theaters, music centers and ballet groups, among others.

Europe

In 2005, Bridgestone Deutschland G.m.b.H donated 100 sets of Bridgestone winter tires to Johanniter
Unifall Hilfe [comparable to the Red Cross in Germany) for use on emergency doctors’ vehicles. Not only
did this smooth the way for doctors heading to traffic accidents in areas requiring winter tires, it also
contributed to the efforts to save the lives of many injured people.

Other regions

The Bekasi Plant in Indonesia is home to a technology-based industrial training school. Established in
1982, the school fosters mechanical and electrical engineering students through courses conducted by
eight different professors and a company official. The students are provided with support through providing
accommodations, food and some spending money. Over the years. there have been roughly 560
gracuates, with 40% of them staying to work for the company. As there are no employment restrictions.
the remaining B0% seek work eisewhere. In this way, the company contributes to the development of
hurnan resources for Indonesian society.

Since 2002, Thai Rridgestene Co., Lid. has granted schelarships to less-fortunate stucents to encourage
study opportunities in important fields such as enginesring, agriculture and natural resources, which are
aimed at driving local development. Elsswhere. a three-year project to build the Rangsit Nature Education
Center bagan in 2005 in conjunction with the Asian Instituie of Technology and WWF-Thailand. The
location containg many varieties of birds. reptiles and amphibians, making it perfect as a resource center
for environmental education through hands-on, experiential learning based on local wisdom, scientific
research and technology.

Bridgestone (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. has been proud to serve as the cnly sponsor of the Tianjin wemen's
volleyball team since 2000. The team was victorious in the Chinese national women's volleyball league for
three successive years from 2002 and was the finalist in 2005. This is a great way for the company to
dermonstrate how it contributes te society in China.

In Australia, thousands are diagnosed with leukemia each year. While cngoing research works to find a
cure, leukemia patients often have more immediate needs - such as transportation. In 2005,
Bridgestone Tyre Centres, Bridgestone Australia Ltd.’s retail network of tyres and refated vehicle
services with more than 250 locations, provided transportation for leukemia patients to and from their
homes to receive treatment.

Volunteers to help build Habitat
Home in the United States
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The stalus of the Companies as documented in this report is subject to diverse risks from both operational
and accounting perspectives. This section provides an overview of the Companies’ risk management
system and of the major categories of risk that may have a bearing on investors’ decisions.

The Companies’ managers are alert to these risks, and systematic efforts are made to prevent or minimize
the impact of related adverse events on operations. Nonetheless, the potential exists for unforeseen or
unpredictabla events related to the risk factors described below to affect the operations, business results
and financial position of the Companies. All references to possible future developments in the following
text are as of March 30, 2006.

Major categories of operational risk

Demand and macroeconomic conditions

The Companies conduct research and development (R&D), purchasing, manufacturing, logistics,
marketing, sales and other functional activities on a global basis. Operating results and financial position
are thus subject to trends in demand, interest rates, foreign exchange ratas, equity share prices, and
other economic variables in different regions. In the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2005, the
consolidated sales split by geographic region (for external customers only) was 43% from operations in
the Americas, 32% from Japan and 13% from Europe. An economic downturn in any of these regions
could exert a significant adverse effect on the business resuits and financial position of the Companies.

The core tire business accounts for approximately 80% of the Companies’ nat sales. In addition,
operations in the diversified products business segment also includs a substantial volume of business in
automotive products. The cperating results and financial position of the Companies are thus heavily
exposed to business conditions in the global automobile industry.

Demand for replacement tires in each country where the Companies operate is also a function of
national trends in consumer spending, automotive fuel prices, and a range of other local market
variables. Any combination of trends that might cause demand for replacement tires to decline, or to
grow at a slower rate, could adversely affect the operating results and financial position of the
Companies. For example, demand for winter tires (which make a substantial contribution to sales in
Japan, Europe and North America) is closely related to seasonal weather trends; lower-than-average
snowfall in any of these regicns could adversely affect to some extent the operating resuits and financial
position of the Companies.

Legal and regulatory risk

The Companies’ operations around the werld are subject to diverse national {and, in Eurcpe, supra-
national) laws and regulations governing all aspects of business activity, including ¢rade, investment,
foreign exchange transactions, anti-competitive practices, and environmental protection. New or revised
laws and regulations could limit the scope of business activities, raise operating costs, or otherwise
adversely affect the business results and financial position of the Companies.

Examples of legal and regulatory changes that have had an effect on the Companies’ tire operations in
the past include the prohibition of spiked tires in Japan and the passage of the TREAD ACT in the United
States. Legal and regulatory developments have also affected the Companies’ diversified products
operations, such as prohibitions on the use of chloroflucrocarbons in urethane foam.

The Companies continue to invest to expand operations rapidly in emerging economiss in Asia and Latin
America, notably China. Unpredictable legal and regulatory changes in these markets couid force
modifications in investment programs and business plans. These types of legal and regulatory changes
could adversely affect the Companies’ operating results and financial conditions.




Operational disruptions

Natural disasters, wars, terrorist actions, civil strife, social and political unrest

Globally dispersed cperations expose the Companies to a broad range of natural and manmade risks
that could constitute force majeure, including natural disasters such as earthquakes and floods. wars.
terrorist actions, civil strife, and general social or political unrest. Any such event has the potential to
affect the operating resulis and financial position of the Companies adversely.

The risks of such events disrupling the Companies’ operations are more acute in emerging economies
in Asia and Latin America, where the Companies are rapidly expanding investment. The greater political
and ecenomic volatility of these regions tends to amplify such risks.

The risk of earthquake is particularly high in Japan, where the Companies have numerous key facilities.
Management systematically promotes the seismic reinforcement of the Companies’ facilities in Japan.
based on an order of priority determined from the results of site analyses using seismic diagnostics.

Researchers in the field have long predicted a serious earthquake in the Tekai region to the southwest
of Tokyo, where the Companies’ facilities include the lwata plant, the manufacturing operations of
Briclgestone Elastech Co.. Ltd., and extensive sales and distribution facilities spanning both tire and
diversified preduct operations. For operations in this region, management has instituted seismic
reinforcement policies and formulated contingency plans detailing the procedures for responding to a
major earthquake and restoring aperational capacity as quickly as possible.

Despite such preventive measures, a serious earthquake in this region {or another part of Japan) could
disrupt operations, cause damage 10 facilities necessitating expensive repairs or restoration work, which
could adversely affect the Companies' operating results and financial conditions.

Operational disruptions at those plants where production of certain products or matenals is
concentrated have the potential 10 cause greater problems due to the increased possibility of a
supply interruption, which could result in claims for compensation based on breach of supply
contracts, or in an ercsion of customers’ confidence in the Companies as reliable sources of supply.
Any such developments could have a significantly adverse impact on the operating results and
financial position of the Companies.

information Technology (IT) systems failures

The complex operations of the Companias are increasingly dependent on the smooth. round-the-clock
functioning of various computing and IT systems. Failure of such systems for any reason, such as a
natural or manmade disaster. or through human error, could cause significant operational disruption,
with the potential for major adverse effects on performance. The Companies have instituted
comprehensive measures 10 safeguard IT and computing systems and related data, and 10 upgrade
network security on an ongoing basis in order to prevent systemic failures.

Industrial action

Prolonged strikes or other industrial action could cause operational disruptions and thereby adversely
affect the operating results and financial position of the Companies. Management strives to minimize
the risk of labor unrest by fostering good laber-management relations throughout glebal operations.

Corparate and brand image

The Companigs strive to enhance their corporate and brand image consistently through their global
business activities. Systematic efforts are made to ensure compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations and to promote the highest ethical standards. Programs are in place across the Companies
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to prevent industrial incidents, particularly fires and any accidents that could cause occupational injuries,
and to respond immediately to any accidents that occur.

Despite such preventive measures, serious ethical lapses or industrial accidents, which are by their nature
unpredictable, have the potential to affect the operating resuits and financial position of the Companies
adversely by damaging the image and reputation of the Companies, or by diminishing the general public's
confidence in the Companies.

Currency risk

The global distribution of the Companies’ R&D, manufacturing, logistics, marketing and sales facilities
requires business transactions in numerous currencies. The Companies employ forward exchange
contracts to hedge short-term exposure tc exchange rate fluctuations between the yen and the dollar,
euro and other leading currencies. However, hedging cannot insulate the Companies’ operations
completely from foreign exchange market trends since these operations include extensive import and
export activities worldwide. Fluctuations in exchange rates can thus have an adverse effect on the
operating results and financial position of the Companies.

Exchange rate fluctuations also affect the consolidated performance of the Companies fundamentally
because results are reported in yen. Changes in currency levels affect the values recorded for sales,
expenses, assets and liabilities in all countries outside Japan when translated into yen. In general terms,
yen appreciation against other leading currencies tends to depress the financia!l results, while yen
depreciation tends to have a favorable impact.

Competition

The Companies compete against numerous rivals in both the tire and diversified products segments,
across the entire product lineup. Competitive price pressures have the potential to affect the operating
results and financial position of the Companies adversely. In addition, the Companies face a constart
risk of demands for price reductions from large corporate clients.

The Companies strive to maintain profitability in the face of downward price pressures by continualty
seeking to reduce costs, raise productivity, enhance brand image, develop new markets, and launch
new products that provide greater value to customers. However, management cannot guaraniee thai
such efforts will always be sufficient to offset the effects of competition.

The Companies’ strategy is based on maintaining a highly competitive technological edge. The
Companies target the development and intreduction of products equipped with new and advanced
technologies, and then aim to persuade customers of the value inherert in such technical advances to
secure prices that ensure profits fully offset the costs of development. Fierce competition in various fields
can sometimes prevent the Companies from recovering developmeant costs through pricing, which can
also have an adverse effect on operating results and financial position.

Product defects

The Companies invest considerable resources in establishing and maintaining high quality standards for all
the products that they manufacture and sell. Management is particulasly sensitive to the importance of
quality assurance in tires and other products intimately associated with human safety. The Companies
have honed their collective quality assurance capabiiities by upgrading information systems related to
product performance, and by establishing systems to provide early warning of any potential safety issues
that may arise before they become problems. Nenetheiess, such efforts cannot guarantee a zero level of
product defects or eliminate the chance of an extensive product recall at some point in the future. Any
such defects or recalls could result in customer claims for damages, as well as associated litigation costs,




replacement cosls and damage te the Companies’ reputation. Product liabiity claims, class-action suits
and other litigation pose a special risk in the United States.

Raw materials procurement

Disruption of supplies of raw materials has the potenual to affect performance adversely. The Companies
use farge quantities of natural rubber n tires and cther rubber products. most of which s supplied from
Southeast Asia. The availability of natural rubber suppiies in quantities sufficient for manufacturing
purposes 1s subject to disruption due to natural disasters, war. terrorist actions, cvil stinfe and other social
or poltical unrest. in addition to the threat of poor harvests. Supply shortages or capacity constrants are
also a potential problem with other basic raw matenals.

The Companias rely on their operations that produce raw materials and on third-parly supphiers for
important raw materials. Any disruption of activity at those operaticns or suppliers and any other events
that impeade the Companies’ plants that use those raw materials could adversely aftect the Companies’
operating results and financial condition.

Increases in the costs of raw materials due to tight supply and other reasons are also potentially
detnmental to the operating results and financial position of the Companies. Management cannot
guarantee that price nses can always be passed on to customers. or that ongoing efiorts to raise
productivity will be sufficient to compensate for any sharp increases in raw materal costs.

Pension costs

Pension-related costs and obligations are reliant on actuanal assumptions concarning a numbper of
varables, ncluding discount rates and the expected rates of nvestment return on pension assets. There
could he a matenal Impact on the aperating resulls and financial position of the Companes if actual
results were 1o differ significantly from ntial assumptions, or if deterorating conditions in financial markets
or other factors were 10 necessitate a change in the underlying assumptions.

Intellectual property

The Companies treat ntellectual property as an tmportant busingss resource. Systematic efforts are made
to employ intellectual propeny effectively i improving the competitive position of the Companies; to
protect ntellectual property rights from nfringement.; and to avoid infringing the ntellectuat property nghis
of other parties.

Daspite such safeguards, any alleged minngement by the Companies of third-party inlellectual property
nghts could have a negative Impact on the use of certan matenals or technologies by the Companies and
could potentially also trigger the payment of compensatory damages. Any such outcome could have a
negauve effect on the operating results and financial posiion of the Companies.

Conversely, if claims by the Companies of intellectual property rghts nfringement aganst third paruies are

not upheld, the Companies could also suifer direct or indirect losses through the dimimished difierentiation
or compentiveness of Its products in global markets.
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Unless otherwise noted, all figures are taken from the consolidated financial statements and notes. The
U.S. dollar figures have been transtated at US$1 = ¥118.07, the prevailing exchange rate on December 31,
2005, solely for the convenience of readers. Financial disclosures by Bridgestone Corporation (the
“Company”} are in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP").

Results of operations

Business environment

A prominent trend of the business environment in fiscal 2005 was continued global upward movement in
the cost of crude oil and other raw materials. The Japanese eccnomy continued to recover moderately
on the back of improving corporate earnings and increases in personal consumption and capital
spending. In the United States, cespite the impact of hurricanes Katrina and Rita, the economy
expanded on the wholg as personal consumption and capital spending continued to increase, Economic
recovery proceeded gradually in Europe. Strong economic growth continued in China, while other Asian
economies also expanded steadily.

Net sales

Net sales increased by ¥274.7 billion ($2.3 billion), or 119% year-on-year, to ¥2,691.4 billion {$22.8
hillicn), setting a new record for the Companies (the Company and subsidiaries) and its subsidiaries) for
the third consecutive year. Sales increased across both business segments (tires and diversified
products) and in every geographic segment.

The ratio of overseas szles {or the Companies was 72.3% in the fiscal year ended December 2005. The
high proportion of sales outside Japan means that fluctuations in currency exchange rates have a
significant effect on net sales. In 2005, the depreciation of the yen against the U.S. dallar boosted
overseas sales as reported in yen slightly. The average yen/dollar exchange rate in 2005 was ¥110,
compared with ¥108 in 2004. Other sources of sales growth in fiscal 2005 included unit sales growth,
increases in sales prices and a higher-value product mix.

Operating income

Substantial volume gains in sales helped to partially offset higher operating costs, which were principally
related to sharp increases in the prices of raw materials, as well as higher depreciation and amortizaticn.
Operating income increased by ¥16.2 billion {$137 million), or 8 %, to ¥213.9 billion ($1,811 million). The
operating margin declined by 0.3 percentage points, from 8.2% to 7.9%.

Operating income margin

(% of net sales
FY 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
7.9 8.2 8.0 8.2 5.5

Performance by business segment
The tire segment includes tires for automobiles, motorcycles, commercial vehicles, aircraft and construction
equipment, as well as tubes, wheels, related accessories and automotive maintenance services.

Including inter-segment transactions, in the tire segment, the Companies’ operating income in fiscal
2005 increased 5% over the previous year, to ¥167.9 billion ($1,422 million), while sales were up 12%,
to ¥2,156.8 billion ($18.3 billion). The earnings contribution from this sales growth partially offset the
adverse effect on earnings of rising raw material costs. The Companies worked to maximize their sales




momentum by miroducing appealing new products worldwide, increasing marketing efforts and
improving product mix. Strong demand in overseas roarkets also contributed to the sales growth.

The consolidated net sales contribution from the core tires segment has remained at or close o the 80%
level for the past several years.

The diversitied products segment includes functional chemical products, a wide range of industrial items,
sporting goods and bicycles. Many of these products are made front rubber or rubber-derived materials.

Including inter-segment transactions, in the diversified products segment, the Companies’ operating
income in fiscal 2005 increased 26%, to ¥45.9 billion ($389 million) aver the previous year, while sales
rose 10%, to ¥564.8 billion ($4.8 hillion)., Business was especially strong in the building materials
operations in the United States and in precision components for office equipment in Japan,

Composition of sales by business segment
et of rler segment ransact:ons:

. af net sales,
Y 2005 2004
Tires 80.0 79.8
Diversified products 20.0 20.2
100.0 100.0

Performance by geographic segment

Including inler-segment transactions, sales in Japan increased 9%, to ¥'1,162.3 hillion ($9.8 billion). and
operating income increased 5%, to ¥138.3 billion (51,171 million), despite increasing raw material costs.
In the Japanese market, unit sales of tires exceeded levels recorded in 2004, especially sales of winter
tires. Unit exports of tires also increased. Precision components for office equipment rose significantly.
contributing to safes growth in diversified products.

In the Americas, sales increased 14%, 10 ¥1,158.0 billion (39,8 bilion). and due to efforts to address increasing
raw material costs, operating ncome increased 46%. to ¥39.0 billion (8330 million). In North Amenca, unii
sales of passenger car and light truck tires declined in the original equipment sector but increased in the
replacement sector. In addition, unit sales of truck and bus tires iIncreased, led by growth in the criginal
equipment sector. Business improved over fiscal 2004 in diversified and Latin American operations,

Sales i Europe increased 13%. to ¥367.0 billion {($3.1 billion), while operating income decreased 11%,.
tc ¥19.6 billion ($166 million) due te the significant negative iImpact of nsing raw material costs. Unit sales
of passenger car and light truck tires increased in the onginal equipment and replacement sectors. Unit
sales of truck and bus tires also increased, led by growth in the original equipment sector.

In other regions, sales grew 23%, to ¥497.9 billion (34.2 billion). shimulated by vigorcus marketing. An
increase of 19% in operating income to ¥21.0 billion ($179 million) was posted daspite the nsing cost of
raw materials,

Composition of sales by geographic segment
ICOMPANTYy DCALON Net of rler segrmen] ransacions:

+« of net sales,

FY 2005 2004
Japan 319 337
Amercas 42.8 419
Europe 13.5 13.3
Cther 11.8 11.1

100.0 100.0
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Net income

¥ billion

Diluted net income
per share (¥)

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
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Other income and expenses

Net other income and expenses decreased by ¥4.1 billion {$35 million), to ¥4.0 billion ($34 million).
Rising levels of interest-bearing debt pushed up net interest expense by ¥2.8 billion ($24 milion), to
¥9.2 hillion ($78 raillion).

The Companies recorded gains of ¥78.6 billion ($665 million) on the return of the substitutional portion
of the governmental pension program, and gains of ¥4.3 billion ($37 million) on sale of fixed assets.

A totai of $240 million {¥26.5 billionj was recorded as an extracrdinary (oss during the period as
Bridgestone Firestone North American Tire, LLC, a subsidiary which manufactures and sells tires in
North America, agreed to pay the Ford Motor Company the amount to settle all outstanding financial
issues associated with Firestone's August 2000 voluntary safety recall and Ford's May 2001 tire
replacement program. The Companies also recorded losses of ¥4.0 billion {$34 million) in connection
with the impairment of fixed assets, and losses of ¥56.9 billion {350 million) on provision for
environmental remediation.

In the previous year, the Companies recorded gains of ¥2.5 billion (¥21 million) on sales of fixed assets and
a loss of ¥3.2 billion (¥27 millicn) associated with a voluntary tire replacement program in the Americas.

Income before income taxes and minority interests increased by ¥63.7 billion ($540 million), or 35%, 10
¥244.6 billion ($2,072 million).

Net income

Income taxes declined 4 % year-on-year to ¥60.3 billion (5511 million), which included the reversal of
valution allowance related to defferd tax assets of ¥40.9 billien {$348 milicn), considering performance
with the Americas is on a recovery track. Minority interests decreased by a small amount to ¥3.5 billion
{$30 million).

As a result, net income rose by ¥66.3 billion ($562 million), or 58%, to ¥180.8 billion ($1,531 million). The
net return on sales improved by 2.0 percentage points, from 4.7% to 6.7%.

Net return on sales

(% of net sales)
FY 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
6.7 4.7 3.9 2.0 0.8

Financial condition

Assets

Current assets increased 10% compared with the previous year-end to ¥1,315.6 billion ($11.1 billion).
An increase of ¥70.1 billion ($534 millicn) in notes and accounts receivable associated with higher sales,
together with an increase of ¥91.6 billion ($776 million) in inventories caused by growth in unit sales
volumes, was offset by a decline of ¥50.1 bilion ($455 milion) in cash and cash eguivalents, which
chiefly reflacted higher capital expenditure and inventories.




Net property, plant, and equipment increased by ¥124.8 billion ($1,057 million) compared with the
previous year-end, mainly reflecting the fact that capital expenditures of Y202.4 billion (31,7 14 million)

exceeded depreciation, which equaied ¥123.1 billion (51,043 millicn). Investments in securities increased

by ¥71.8 billion {$606 million), primarily due to a rise in the market value of equity holdings. Noncurrent
deferred tax assets increased by ¥53.0 billion {$449 milion) due to the reversal of valuation allowances
against such assets. Total fixed assets increased 22% to ¥1,394.3 bilicn ($11.8 billion) compared with
the previous year-end.

Liabilities

Current liabilities increased 20% compared with the previous year-end to ¥855.8 bilion (57.2 billion). This

reflected a net increase of ¥56.7 billion ($480 million) in interest-bearing debt with maturities of 12
months or less, mainly short-tarm debt. Notes and accounts payable increased by Y87.3 billion ($570
million) due to a combination of higher production levels and steep rises in raw material prices.

Total long-term liabilities increased 6.0% to ¥690.7 billion ($5.8 bilion) from the previous year-end.
Accrued pension and liabilities for retirement benefits declined by ¥85.1 billion (S721 million) to ¥194.6
billion {S1,648 million). as a result of the return to the Japanese government of the substitutional portion
of an employeae pension plan covering the Company and several domestic subsidiaries. However, this
was offset by an increase of ¥43.5 billion ($368 million) in long-term interest-bearing debt and an
increase of ¥54.0 billion (8457 million} in noncurrent deferred tax liabilities, which reflected factors such
as a reduction in accrued pension and liabilities for retirement benefits and a rise in the market value of
equity holdings. The Company and certain domestic subsidiaries also made a new provision for
environmental remediation of ¥5.9 billion (S50 million).

Minority interests and shareholders’ equity
Minority interests increased 8% compared with the previous year-end to ¥34.8 billion (3296 million),
principally dug to yen depreciation pushing up the value of mincrity interests in overseas subsidiaries.

Shareholders’ equity increased by ¥ 183.6 billion ($1.640 million), or 21%, to ¥1,129 billion ($2.6 billion)
compared with the previous year-end. This reflected growth in retained earmings of Y88.1 billion ($831
millicn), an increase in the net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities of ¥41.6 billion ($352
millicn), and a change in foreign currency translation adjustments of ¥50.3 billion ($426 million).

The ratio of shareholders’ equity to 101zl assets at the end of December 2005 was 41.6%. an increase
of 1.5 percentage points from the previous year-end,

The ratio of debst te debt and shareholders’ equity was 0.34 at year-end, which was the same
percentage as at the previous year-end.

Debt to debt and equity ratio

{Times)
FY 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
0.34 0.34 0.35 0.37 C.48

Shareholders’ equity

Y billion
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Cash flow
{net cash provided by operatng activites)
¥ bilion
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Net return on shareholders’ equity (ROE) posted a year-on-year improvement of 4.9 percentage points,
from 12.6% to 17.5%. Net return on total assets (ROA} improved by 2.2 percentage points, from 5.0%
10 7.2%.

Net return on shareholders’ equity
(% of simple average of year-end shareholders’ equity)
FY 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
17.5 12.6 10.5 56 2.2

Net return on assets
{% of simple average of year-end total assets)
FY 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
7.2 5.0 4.1 2.0 0.8

Cash flow

Cash and cash equivalents fell by ¥50.1 billion {3424 million) compared with the previous year-end, to
¥213.6 billion {31,809 million). Net cash provided by operating activities totaled ¥149 billion ($1,262
milion), due mainly 1o a rise in income before income taxes and minority interests. Net cash used in
investing activities totaled ¥216.9 bilion ($1,837 milion), due principally to payments for purchase of
property, plant and equipment. Net cash provided by financing activities totaled ¥10.3 billion ($87
million), reflecting a net-increase in short-term debt.

Eleven-year summary

Bridgestene Corperation and Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31

2005 2004 2003 2002.
Net sales: ¥ 2,691,376 ¥ 2,416,685 ¥ 2,303,917 ¥ 2,247,769
Tires {net of inter-segment accounts) 2,156,788 1,927,989 1,836,395 1,797,598
Diversified producis {net of inter-segment accounts} 564,768 488,696 467 522 450,171
Operating income 213,851 197,697 183,294 183,862
Net income 180,796 114,453 88,720 45,379
Net income per share (in yen):
Basic 226.92 138.96 102.75 51.97
Diluted 226.86 138.94 102.56 51.89
Total assets 2,709,962 2,333,708 2,220,613 2,143,928
Shareholders' equity 1,128,597 934,981 887,987 796,013
Ratio of shareholders’ equity to total assets (%) 4.6 40.14 40.0 37.1
Capital expenditure 203,670 181,000 165,742 116,764
Depreciation and amoriization 127,609 111,491 104,383 119,466
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Dividends

The total annual dividend for the year was ¥24 ($0.20) per share, an increase of ¥5 (30.04) per share

Capital expenditure

¥ ballion

compared with fiscal 2004. This figure was composed of a final dividend of Y14 (30.12) per share and an
intenim dividend of ¥10 (30.08) per share.

Projections for the fiscal year ending December 2006
Management expects business conditions to remain challenging in 2006. Persistently high raw material
costs remain a significant adverse factor with the potential to offset gains from demand growth around

the world. Unit tire sales forecasts project positive year-cn-year growth in passenger car, light truck,

102%]

truck and bus tires in the Americas and in Europe. Tire exports from Japan are alse expected to rise in

volume terms.

Reflecting knock-on effects of steep rses in raw material prices. managernent forecasts an 8% decling in

operating income to ¥167.0 hillion on 8% growth in sales to ¥2,900 billion. Taking into consideration the

absence of significant gains on the retum to the Japanese government of the substitutional portion of an
employee pension plan covering the Company and several domestic subsidiaries, net income is forecast

to fall 45% 1o Y100.0 billion. These figures assume average exchange rates for the year of ¥110 for

yervdollar and ¥ 135 for yen/euro. Management plans to pay total dividends per share of ¥24 in 2006,

comprising intenm and final dividends of ¥12 each.

66 |
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Millions of yen
2001 2000 1999 1698 1997 1996 1995
¥ 2,133,825 ¥ 2,006.902 ¥ 2,085.720 ¥ 2,236,699 ¥ 2.170.803 ¥ 1,958,026 ¥ 1,686,636
1,687,235 1.560.182 1,638,304 1,772,226 1.685,389 1,516.510 1,274,242
446,590 446,720 447 416 464,473 485.414 442,516 412,394
118,023 161,785 238,777 248,318 222,298 182,356 154,185
17,389 17,741 88,690 104.626 39,159 70,335 54,143
20.20 20.60 103.98 126.28 4823 88.20 69.13
2019 20.59 102.96 123.01 46.83
2,443,793 2,038,578 1,792,744 1,830,149 1,800.659 1,722,918 1,554,950
835,144 778,713 743,069 697,424 641.382 579,366 474,949
34.2 38.2 41.4 38.1 35.6 33.6 20.7
104,313 137,772 175,495 220,625 160.468 127.226 87.769
132,920 119,925 118,464 107,474 200,831 111,968 110,149
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Financial section | Consoclidated financial staterments

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Bridgestone Corporation and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2005 and 2004

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars {Note 2)
Assets 2005 2004 2005
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 213,581 ¥ 263,726 % 1,808,935
Notes and accounts receivable (Note 6}, less allowance for doubtful accounts of
¥16,233 million {$137,486 thousand) in 2005 and ¥15,736 million in 2004 514,941 444,798 4,361,320
Inventories (Notes 4 and 6) 464,973 373,420 3,938,113
Deferred tax assets {Note 13) 49,698 58,141 420,920
Other current assets 72,440 53514 613,534
Total Current Assets 1,315,633 1,193,599 11,142,822
Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 6):
Land 133,250 124,043 1,128,568
Buildings and structures 557,065 506,732 4,718,091
Machinery and equipment 1,551,356 1,382,472 13,139,290
Construction in progress 89,786 67,047 760,447
2,331,457 2,080,294 19,746,396
Accumulated depreciation (1,463,080) {1,336,684) {12,391,632)
Net Property, Plant and Equipment 868,377 743,610 7,354,764
Investments and Other Assets:
Investments in securities (Note 5) 284,884 213,294 2,412,840
Investments in and advances 1o affiliated companies 21,306 19,431 180,452
Long-term loans receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of
¥664 million ($5,624 thousand) in 2005 and ¥799 million in 2004 14,702 14,480 124,519
Deferred tax assets (Note 13) 138,085 85,118 1,169,518
Other assets 66,975 64,178 567,249
Total Investments and COther Assets 525,952 396,499 4,454,578
Total ¥ 2,709,962 ¥ 2,333,708 $ 22,952,164

See notes to consolidated financiai statements.




Millions of yen

Thousands of

1.5, dollars {Note 2)

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 2025 2004 2005
Current Liabilities:
Short-term debt (Note 6) ¥ 213,509 ¥ 79935 $ 1,808,326
Current portion of long-term debt (Nole 6) 14,8 91,771 126,120
Notes and accounts payable 362,812 295,476 3,072,855
Income taxes payable 35,082 43,660 297,129
Accrued expenses 177,965 166,804 1,507,284
Provision for voluntary tire recall {Note 17) 6,277 8.097 53,163
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 13) 2,000 1,263 16,939
Other current liabilities 43,238 37.956 366,207
Total Current Liabilities 855,774 714,992 7,248,023
Long-term Liabilities:
Long-term debt (Note 5) 351,341 307,867 2,975,701
Accrued pension and liability for retirement benefits (Note 7) 194,620 279,735 1,648,344
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 13) 72,567 18,526 614,610
Provision for environmental remediation 5,887 — 49,860
Cther liabilities 66,244 45,204 561,057
Total Long-term Liabilities 690,659 651,332 5,849,572
Total Liabitities 1,546,433 1,366,324 13,097,595
Minority Interests 34,932 32,403 295,858
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (Notes 15 and 17)
Shareholders’ Equity (Note 8):
Common stock
Authorized—1,470,000,000 shares, issued—833,102,321 shares in 2005
and authorized—-1,500,000.000 shares, issued—863, 102,321 shares in 2004 126,354 126,354 1,070,162
Capftal surplus 122,079 122,078 1,033,954
Retained earnings 935,823 837,765 7,926,002
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 144,187 102,613 1,221,199
Forgign currency translation adjustiments (102,038) (152,301} {864,216}
Treasury stock—at cost, 51,748,263 shares in 2005 and 60,326,819 shares
in 2004 {Nole 18) {97,808} (101,529) (828,390}
Total Shareholders™ Equity 1,128,597 934,981 9,558,711
Total ¥ 2,709,962 ¥ 2,333,708 $ 22,952,164
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Financial section | Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated Statements of Income

Bridgestone Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars {Note 2}
2005 2004 2003 2005
Net Sales {Naote 16) ¥ 2,691,376 ¥ 2,416,685 ¥ 2,303,917 8 22,794,749
Cost of Sales 1,751,941 1,533,251 1,441,639 14,838,155
Gross profit 939,435 883,434 862,278 7,956,594
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 725,584 685,737 678,984 6,145,372
QOperating income (Note 16) 213,851 197,697 183,294 1,811,222
Other Income (Expenses):
interest and dividend income 6,030 4,036 5,356 51,071
Interest expense (15,227) (11,331) (11,962) (128,966)
Foreign currency exchange loss (2,588} (1,657} {4,404) {21,919}
Gains on sales of property, plant and equipment {Note 12} 4,318 2,523 — 36,572
Insurance claims received (Note 12) — — 4,340 —
Gains on return of substitutional portion of the governmental
pension pragram {(Nate 73 78,572 — — 665,470
Impairment losses on assets (Note 12) (4,010) — (5,768) (33,963)
Loss on fire incident {Note 12) — — {3,833) —
Loss on provision for environmental remediation (Note 12) (5,887} — — (49,860)
Loss related to voluntary tire replacement (Notes 12 and 17} (26,503} (3,240) — (224,469)
Other—net (3,961} (8,051) {4,988) (33,548)
Income before inceme taxes and minority interests 244,595 180,877 162,035 2,071,610
Income Taxes (Note 13):
Current 58,466 60,358 20,912 495,181
Deferred 1,794 2,450 47,815 15,194
Total 60,260 62,818 68,727 510,375
Income before minority interests 184,335 118,059 93,308 1,561,235
Minority Interests (3,539} (3.606) {4,588) (29,974)
Net Income ¥ 180,796 ¥ 114453 ¥ 88720 % 1,531,281
Yen .S dollars (Note 2)
Per Share of Common Stock:
Basic (Note 10) ¥ 226.92 ¥ 138.96 ¥ 10275 $ 1.92
Diluted (Notes 8 and 10) 226.86 138.94 102.56 1.92
Cash dividends applicable to the year 24.00 19.00 16.00 0.20

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

48




Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

Bndgestone Corporation and Subsidianes
Years encied December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Thousands Millions of yen
Qutstanding Net urrgahsed Foreign
number ol Ggaan on currency
shares of Commion Capital Retaned  avalabie tor saie translaton Treasury
COMMON S10Ck slock surpius Banngs SECLMIES. adjustrments Siock
Balance at January 1, 2003 860.337 ¥ 125,120 ¥ 120,845 ¥ ©662.343 Y 38009 Y (i49.031) ¥ {1.278)
Net income for the year 88,720
Cash dividends {13.766)
Bonuses to directors {641)
Conversion of bonds to common sStock 1.850 1,234 1.234
Minimum pension liability adjustrents 3,528
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 46,487
Foreign currency translation adjustments {2,444}
Purchase of lreasury stock, net of sales (22,358] 132.376)
Balance at December 31, 2003 839.832 126.354 122,079 740487 84,496 {151.,475) {33.654)
Net income for the year 114,453
Cash dividends {13.261)
Bonuses to directors (645)
Mirimum pension liability acjustments {2,966
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 18,017
Foreign currency translation adjustiments (826)
Purchase of treasury stock, net of sales {37.056) e} {67,875
Balance at December 31, 2004 BO2,778 126.354 122,079 837,765 102,613 {152.301) {101,529)
Net income for the year 180,796
Cash dividends (16,772}
Bonuses to directors (699}
Retirement of treasury stock (50,494} 50,494
Increase due to revaluation of fixed assets in
overseas subsidiaries 4,318
Mirnmiim pension liability adjustments (19,054)
Net unrealized gain on avarlable-for-sale securities 41,574
Fereign currency translation adjustments 50,263
Purchase of treasury stock, net of sales (21,422) {37} {46,773
Balance at December 31, 2005 781,354 ¥ 126,354 ¥ 122,079 ¥ 935823 ¥ 144,187 ¥ (102,038) ¥ (97,808}

Thousands of U.S. doliars {Note 2)

Net urrgatred Foreign
gangn currancy
Commar Capaal Relared  ava abe-'or-sale transiaton Treasary
siock Surpius earrngs SRCLIMES. adusimanis SIOCk
Balance at December 31, 2004 $1.070.162 51033954 S7,095404 S B869.086 $(1.289.921) § (859.905)
Net income for the year 1,531,281
Cash dvidends (142,051)
Bonusas to directors {5,920)
Retirement of treasury stock (427,662) 427,662
Increase due to revaluation of fixed assels in
overseas subsidianes 36,572
Minimum pension liability adjustments (161.379)
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale secunties 352,113
Foreign currency transtation adjustments 425,705
Purchase of treasury stock, net of sales {313] {396,147}
Balance at December 31, 2005 $1,070,162 $1,033954 $7,926,002 $1,221,199 § (864,216} S (828,390)

See notes to conschidated hnancial statements.
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Financial section | Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Bridgestone Corporation and Subsidiaries
Years endad December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars {Note 2}
2005 2004 2003 2005

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 244,595 ¥ 180,877 ¥ 162,035 $ 2,071,610
Adjustments to recancile income before income taxes and

mincrity interests to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 127,609 111,491 104,383 1,080,791
Increase (dacrease) in accrued pension and liability for
retirement benefits (100,839) 12,452 3,71 (854,061)
Interest and dividend income (6,030) (4,938) (5,356) (51,071)
Interest expense 15,227 11,331 11,062 128,966
Gains on sales of property, plant and equipment {4,318) (2,523) (2,047) (36,572}
Insurance claims received — — (4,340) —
impairment losses on assets 4,010 — 5,768 33,963
Loss on fire incident — — 3,833 —
Loss on provision for environmental remediation 5,887 — — 49,860
Loss related to voluntary tire replacement 26,503 3,240 — 224,469
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in notes and accounts receivable (47,235) (39,873) 37,940 (400,059)
Increase in inventcories (57,482) {(21,991) (35,885) (486,847)
Increase {decrease) in notes and accounts payable 47,942 17,461 (2,628) 406,047
Bonuses paid to directors (699) (645) 641} {5,920}
Other 285 13,355 14,565 2,413
Subtotal 255,455 280,239 293,300 2,163,589
Interest and dividends received 6,057 5,624 4,946 51,300
Interest paid (14,740} (11,357) {12,935) {124,841}
Payments for North American plant restructuring —_ — (989) —
Payments related to veluntary tire replacement {29,213) {6,371) (11,088) (247,421)
Insurance claims received — — 4,340 -
Payments for fire incident - (1,568) (171) —
Income taxes paid (68,577) (27,838) {19,277) (580,816)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 148,982 238,729 258,126 1,261,811
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment (196,494) (179,565) (141,8086) (1,664,216)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 7,700 6,482 3,409 65,216
Payments for investments in securities, subsidiaries and
afflliated companies (20,472) {15,737 (20,049) {173,389)
Other {7,649) 8,804 11,288 {64,784}
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (216,915) (179,816 (146,958) {1,837,173)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net increase (decrease) in short-term debt 120,398 {8,750) (29,984) 1,019,717
Proceads from long-term debt 49,013 72,112 135,254 415,118
Repayments of long-term debt {90,806} {77,899) (68,820} (769,086}
Cash dividends paid (16,772) (13,258) (13,493) (142,051}
Proceeds from sale of assets on sale-leaseback transactions 6,681 15,815 — 56,585
Payments for repurchase of assets on sale-leaseback transactions (2,904) (5911 — (24,596)
Payments for purchase of treasury stock (46,966) {67,935) {32,376) (397,781}
Repayments of lease obligations under capitai lease (7,643} {6,076) (6,442} (64,733)
Other (745) (2,241) (2,966) {6,309)
Net Cash Provided by {(Used in) Financing Activities 10,256 94,143) (18,827) 86,864
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,532 7 (596) 63,792
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {50,145) (34,539) 91,745 (424,7086)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 263,726 208,265 206,520 2,233,641
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year ¥ 213,581 Y 263,726 ¥ 298,265 $ 1,808,935

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Bridgestone Corporation and Subsidanes

Note 1— Nature of operations

Bridgestone Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter referred to collectively as the "Companies”) engage in
developing, manufacturing and marketing tires and diversified
products. The Companies market their products worldwide and
operate manufacturing planis in every principal market.
Development activities take place primarily in Japan. the United

States of America (the "U.S."} and Europe. Tire operations include
automotive maintenance and repairs, retail business and credit
card management, as well as tire development, manufacturing
and marketing. Diversified products include industrial products.
chemical products, autemctive components, construction
materials, electronic equipment, bicycles and sporting goods.

Note 2— Basis of presenting consolidated financial statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the
Japanese Securities and Exchange Law and its related
accounting regulations, and in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different in
cerlain respects as to application and disclosure reguirements of
the accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese
yen, the currency of the country in which the Company is

incorporatect and operates. The translations of Japanesa yen
amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included sclely for the
convenience of readars outside Japan and have been made at the
rate of ¥118.07 to $1, the approximale rate of exchange at
December 31, 2005. Such translations should not be construed
as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could be
converled into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

Note 3— Summary of significant accounting policies

{a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and all of its subsidiaries in which the Company has
effective control. All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Al material
urrealized profits included in assets resulting from transactions
within the Companies are eliminated.

Investments in affiiated companies, those owned 20% to 50%.
are accolnted for under the equity methed with appropriate
adjustments for intercompany profits and dividends. Equity in
earnings of the affiliated companies is included in other income
(expenses) in the consolidated statements of income.

The number of consolidated subsidiaries and affikated
companies for 2005 and 2004 is summarnized below:

2005 2004
Consolidated subsidiaries 440 435
Affiliated companies 198 202

(b) Cash equivalenis

Cash equivalents are shori-term investments thal are readily
convertible into cash and that are exposed e insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash equivalents include highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

{c) Allowance for doubiful accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts is established in amounts
considered 1o be appropria‘e based on the Companies’ past credit
joss experience and an eva uation of potential losses in the
receivables outstanding.

(d) Inventories

Inventories are substantially stated at cost determined by the
moving-average methed, while inventories held by subsidiaries in
the U.S. are substantially stated at the lower of cost, which is
determined principalty by the last-in, first-out method. or market.

(e) Investments in securities
Marketable and investment securities are classified and accounted
for, depending on managerent's intent, as follows: (i} trading
securities, which are held for the purpose of earning capital gains in
the near term, are reported at fair value, and the related unrealized
gains and losses are includzd in income; {ii) held-tc-maturity debt
securities, which are expected to be held to maturity with the
positiva intent and ability to hold to maturity, are reported at
amorlized cost; and (iii) available-for-sale securities, which are not
classified as aither of the afarementioned securities, are reported al
fair value. with unrealized gains and losses. net of applicable taxes,
reported in a separaie corrponent of shareholders’ equity. The
Companies do not hold securities for trading purposes.
Non-marketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost
determined by the moving-average method. For other than
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temporary declines in fair value, investments in securities are
reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income,

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of
property, plant and equipment of the Company and its domestic
subsidiaries is computed substantially by the declining-balance
method at rates based on the estimated useful lives of the assets,
while the straight-line method is applied to property, plant and
equipment of overseas subsidiaries. Maintenance, repair and minor
renewals are charged to income as incurred.

(9) Impairment of long-lived assets

In August 2002, the Business Accounting Council issued a Staternent
of Opinion, “Accounting for Impairment of Fixed Assets,” and in
October 2003, the Accounting Standards Board of Japan (‘ASBJ")
issued ASB. Guidance No.6, “Guidance for Accounting Standard for
Impairment of Fixed Assets.” These new pronouncements are
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2005 with early
adoption permitted for fiscal years ending on or after March 31, 2004.

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries adopted the new
accounting standard for impairment of fixed assets as of January 1,
2005, Their long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes In circumstances indicate the carrying amount of
an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. Animpairment loss
wowld be recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or asset group
exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to
result from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or
asset group. The impairment loss would be measurad as the amount
by which the carrying amount of the asset or asset group exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows
from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset
group, or the net selling price at disposition.

The effect of adoption of the new accounting standard for
impairment of fixed assets was to decrease income before income
taxes and minority interests for the year ended December 31, 2005
by ¥3,042 million ($25,764 thousand).

The impairment of long-lived assets for certain overseas
subsidiaries is accounted for in accordance with Staterment of
Financial Accounting Standards (*SFAS”) No.144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Livad Assets,” issued by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board {the “FASB") in the LIS,
which requires long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles
to be held and used by an entity be reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may nct be recoverablg.

(h) Goodwill

Goodwill recarded by subsidiaries and, the axcess of cost of the
Company's investrments in subsidiaries and affifated companies
over {ts equity in the net assets at the respective dates of
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acquisition, is mainly being amortized over a period of five vears on
the straight-ling basis.

(i) Provision for product warranties

The prevision for product warranties, included in Other liabilities, is
estimated and recorded at the time of sale to provide for future
potential costs, such as costs related to after-sales senvicas, in
amounts considered to be appropriate bhased on the Companies’
past experience.

{j) Provision for environmental remediation

The provision for environmental remediation is estimated and recorded
to provide for future potential costs, such as costs related to removal
and disposal of asbestos used in buldings or machinery and
equipment and others, and polychiorinated biphenyl (PCB).

{k) Retirement and pension plans

Japanese domestic companies

Employees serving with the Company and its domestic subsidiaries
are generally entitled to lump-sum severance and, in certain cases,
annuity payrments on retirement, based on the rates of pay at the time
of termination, years of service and certain other factors. Such benefits
are principally provided by funded defined bensfit pension plans.

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries accounted for the
lability for retirement benefits based on projected benefit cbligations
and plan assets at the balance sheet date. The transitional obligation
is being amartized over ten years.

The ligbility for retirement benefits to directors {members of the
Board of Directors) and corporate auditors is provided for at the
amount which would be required, based on the Company’s
regulations, in the event that all directers and corporate auditors
terminated their offices at the balance sheet date. Any amounts
payable to directors and corporate auditors upen retirement are
subject to approval at the general shareholders meeting.

Overseas subsidiaries

The funded defined benefit pensicn plans for the employees of
certain overseas subsidiaries are accounted for in accordance with
SFAS No.87, “Employers’ Agcounting for Pensions,” while the
postretirement benefits other than pensions for all health care and
life insurance benefit plans are accounted for in accordance with
SFAS No. 106, "Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions.” SFAS No.106 requires the accrual of retiree
postretirement benefits during the active service period of the
employee. Other overseas subsidiaries have defined contribution
pension plans or severance indemnity plans which substantially
cover all of their employesas.

(l) Leases
Finance leases are capitalized, and the present value of the reiated
payments is recorded as a liability. Amaortization of capitalized




leased assets is computed substantially by the declining-balance
method at rates based on the term of the lease.

{m) Income taxes

The provision for income taxes is computed based on income
before income taxes included in the consolidated statements of
income. The asset and liability approach is used to recognize
deferred iax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of iemporary differences between the carrying
amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred income
taxes are measured by applying currently enacted tax laws to the
termporary differences. A valuation aftowance is provided for any
portion of the deferrad tax assets where it is considered more likely
than not that they wil not be realized.

{n) Bonuses to directors

Bonuses to diractors are subject to approval at the general
shareholders meeting and are accounted for by an appropriation
of retained earnings for the year in which the approval and
payments are made in accordance with the Japanese Commercial
Code {the "Code™).

(o) Appropriations of retained earnings

Appropriations of retained earmings are reflecied in the consolidated
financial statements for the following year after approval by the
shareholders in accordance with the Code.

(p} Foreign currency transactions

Short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese
yen al the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The foreign
currency exchange gains and losses from translation are
recognized in income to the extent that they are not hedged by
foreign currency forward contracts, currency swap contracts, or
currency option contracts.

(g} Foreign currency financial statements

The balance sheet accounts of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Japanese yen at the current exchange rate at the balance sheet
date except for shareholders’ equity, which is translated at the
historical rate. Differences arising from such transiation are shown
as foreign currency translation adjustments in a separate
companent of shareholders' equity. Revenue and expense
accounts of overseas subsidiaries are translaied into Japanese yen
at the average annual exchange rate.

(r) Derivatives and hedging activities

The Companies use derivative financial instruments to manage ther
exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange. interest
rates and commeodity prices. Foreign currency forward contracts,
currency swap contracts and currency option contracts are utilized

by the Companies to reduce foreign currency exchange risks.
Interest rate swaps are utiizad by the Companies 1o reduce interest
rate nsks. Also, commodity future contracts are utilized by the
Companies to reduca commodity price risks. The Companies do
not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

Derivative financial instruments and foreign currency
transactions are classified a d accounted for as follows: (i) all
derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities and
measured at fair value, and gains or losses on derivatve
transactions are recognized in income and (i} for derivatives used
for hedging purposes, If dervatives qualify for hedge accounting
because of high correlation and effectiveness between the hedging
instruments and the hedged items, gaing or Iosses on derivatives
are deferred until maturity o the hedged transactions.

The Companies’ foreign currency forward contracts which are
designated as hedging exposure to variable cash flows of
forecasted transactions are measured at the fair value and the
unrealized gains/osses arg deferred until the underlying transactions
are completed. Cther foreign currency forward contracts. currency
swap contracts and currancy option contracts employed to hedge
foreign currency exchange 2xposures {0 changes in fair value and in
cash flow are also measured at the fair value but the unrealized
gains/losses are recognized in income. Short-term and long-term
debt denominated in foreigin currencies for which foreign currency
forward contracts and currency swap contracts are used to hedge
the foreign currency fluctuasions is translated at the contracted rate
if the foreign currency forwzird contracts and currency swap
contracts qualify for hedge accounting. The interest rate swaps
which qualify for hedge accounting and meet specific matching
criteria are not remeasured at market vatue, but the differential paid
or received under the swap agreements is recognized and ncluded
in interest expenses or inceme. The gains or losses on commodity
future contracts in a hedge to fluctuations of commaodity prices are
recognized currently ininccme.

(s) Per share of common stock

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income
available to common sharenclders by the weighted-average
number of common stock sutstanding for the period, retroactively
adjusted for stock splits.

Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that
cauld oceur if securities were exercised or converted inte Common
stock. Diluted net income per share of common stock assumes full
conversion of the cutstand ng convertible notes and bonds at the
begnning of the yaar {or at ihe time of issuance) with an applicable
adjustment for related interast expense, net of tax, and full exercise
of outstanding warrants.

Cash dividends per share presented in the consclidated
statements of iIncome are dividends applicable to the respective
years, including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.
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{t} Reclassification
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain
reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the
consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to
present them in a form which is more familiar to readers outside
Japan. In addition, certain reclassificaticns have been made in the
2004 and 2003 financiat statements to conform to the
classifications used in 2005.

Prior to January 1, 2005, Netes and account receivable, Other
current assets, Noles and account payable, and Olher cumrent

Note 4— Inventories

Inventories at December 31, 2005 and 2004 consist of the following:

liabiities with a maturity date of December 31, whenit is not a
working day for financial institutions, were accounted as settled for
accounting purpose even in those years when December 31 was
not a working day for financial institutions. Effective January 1, 2005,
the Company changed its method of accounting for thesa items to
the basis of actual cash settlement date. The effect of this change
was to increase receivables by ¥9,930 milion {$84,103 thousand)
and payables by ¥20,443 million ($173,143 thousand) at Decernber
31, 2004, There were immaterial impacts on the consolidated
staterments of income for the year ended Decemioer 31, 2004.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Finished products ¥ 300,389 ¥ 244312 $ 2,544,160
Work in process N,737 25,626 268,798
Raw materials and supplies 132,847 103,482 1,125,155
Total ¥ 464,973 ¥ 373,420 $ 23,938,113
Note 5— Investments in securities
Information regarding each category of available-for-sale securities at December 31, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:
Millions of yen
2005
Cost Unrealized gains Unrealized losses Fair value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities Y 46,634 ¥ 229,694 ¥ (23) ¥ 276,305
Debt securities 3,000 27 — 3,027
Millions of yen
2004
Cost Urrealized gains Unrealized losses Fair value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥ 46,662 ¥ 158,576 ¥ {47) ¥ 205,191
[ebt securities 3,000 36 — 3,036
Thousands of L.S. dollars
2005
Cost Unrealized gains Unrealized losses Fair value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities $ 394,969 $ 1,945,406 3 {195} $ 2,340,180
Debt securities 25,409 228 — 25,637
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Available-for-sale securities whose fair value is not readily determinable at December 31, 20C5 and 2004 are mainly as follows:

Carrying amount
Thousands of
Milions of yen .S, dollars
2005 2004 2005
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥ 5451 ¥ 4,850 S 46,168

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are ¥360 million

($3.049 thousand), ¥5,754 million and ¥3,768 million, respectively.

Gross reglized gains and losses on these sales, computed on the
maoving average cost basis, are Y270 milion ($2,287 thousand)

and ¥5 million ($42 thousand), respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2005, ¥8E milion and ¥78 million, respectively, for
the year ended December 31, 2004 and Y309 million and ¥392
million. respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2003.

The carrying values of debt securities by contractual maturities for securities classified as avalable-for-sale at December 31, 2005 are

as follows:

Available-for-sale:
Debt securites:
Cue 2006
Due 2007 1o 2010
Due 2011 10 2015
Due 2016 and thereafter

Thousands of

Milliens of yen U.S. dollars

¥ 3,027 3 25.637

Total

¥ 3,027 3 25.637

Note 6— Short-term and long-term debt

Short-term debt at December 31. 2005 and 2004 consists of the following:

Thousands o
Milhons of yen U.5. dollars

2005 2004 2005

Short-term bank loans, weighted average interest rate of 4.6%
at December 31, 2005 and 3.7% at December 31, 2004
Commercial paper, weighted average interest rate of 2.7%
at December 31, 2005 and 2.3% at December 31, 2004
Unsecured Euro Medium Term Notes due 2005—2006 with
interest 0.0% at December 31, 2005 and interast ranging
from 0.0% to 0.1% at December 31, 2004

¥ 195,738 Y 70175 $ 1,857,813

11,771 1,409 99,695

6,000 8.351 50,818

Total

Y 213,509 ¥ 79935 S 1,808,326
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Long-term debt at December 31, 2005 and 2004 consists of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of yen US. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Borrowings from banks, insurance companies and others, weighted average
interest rate of 2.5% at December 31, 2005 and 2.1% at December 31, 2004
denominated mainly in Japanese yen, U.S. dollars and Euros:
Secured ¥ 2,473 ¥ 2,649 $ 20,945
Unsecured 216,758 263,843 1,835,842
1.7% yen unsecured straight bonds, due 2007 20,000 20,000 169,391
2.0% yen unsecured straight bonds, due 2010 30,000 30,600 254,087
0.6% yen unsecured straight bonds, due 2010 30,000 30,000 254,087
0.9% yen unsecured straight bonds, due 2013 50,000 50,000 423,478
Unsecured Euro Medium Term Notes dug 2007—2010 with interest ranging from 0.3%
10 1.1% at December 31, 2005 and due 2007 with interest C.3% at December 31, 2004 17,001 3,146 143,991
Total 366,232 399,638 3,101,821
less current portien {14,891) @1,771) (126,120)
Long-term debt, less current portion ¥ 351,341 ¥ 307,867 $ 2,975,701
Annual maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2005 are as follows:
Thousands of
Year ending December 31, Milions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 ¥ 14,891 $ 126,120
2007 64,759 548,480
2008 92,589 784,187
2009 13,714 116,152
2010 76,092 644,465
2011 and thereafter 104,187 882,417
Total ¥ 366,232 $ 3.101.,821

Notes and accounts receivable, inventories, and preperty,
plant and equipment were pledged as collateral for certain
hark loans. The aggregate carrying amount of the assets
pledged as collateral for short-term bank loans of ¥4,392 million
($37,198 thousand) and long-term bank toans of ¥2,473 million
($20,945 thousand) at December 31, 2005 is ¥37,122 million
{$314,407 thousand).

General agreements with respective banks provide, as is
customary in Japan, that additional collateral must be provided
under certain circumsiances if requested by such banks and
that certain banks have the right to offset cash deposited with
them against any long-term or short-term debt or obligation
that becomes due and, in case of default and certain other
specified events, against all other debt payable to the banks.
The Company has never been requested to provide any
additional collateral.

At December 31, 2005, the Company had unused committed

lines of credit with various banks for short-term financing,
ampunting to ¥50,000 million ($423,478 thousand). The
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Company compensates banks for these lines of credit in the form
of commitment fees, which were not material for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

Effective January 30, 2008, Bridgestone Americas Holding,
Inc. (*BSAH"} and its major subsidiaries in the U.S. entered into
separate fourth amended and restated revolving credit
agreements with a syndicate of banks providing an aggregate
borrowing commitment of $1.4 billion. These agreements expire
on January 29, 2007. These agreements contain certain
cusiomary affimative and negative covenants, the most
restrictive of which includes (i} the maintenance by BSAH and its
major subsidiaries of their consolidated tangible net worth; (i)
restrictions on entering into additional debt arrangements and the
sale of assets. Further, an event of default under these
agreements by any of the major subsidiaries in the U.S. causes
an event of default under the BSAH fourth amended and restated
revolving credit agreement. The above agreements replace the
separate third amended and restated revolving credit agreements
entered into on January 31, 2005, by BSAH and its major




subsidiaries which provided an aggregate borrowing commitrment
of $1.5 hillion and expired on January 30, 2006. The terms of the
separate third amanded and restated revolving credit agreements

Note 7— Retirement and pension plans

The Coempany and certain of its domestic subsidiaries have
severance payment plans for employees, directors {members of
the Board of Directors), and corporate auditors,

Under most circumstances, employees terminating their
employment are entitled to retirement benefits determined based
on the rate of pay at the time of termination, years of service and
certain other factors. Such retirement benefits are made in the
form of a lump-sum severance payment from the Company or
from certain of its domestic subsidiaries and annuity payments
from trustees. Employees are entitled to larger payments if the
termination is involuntary, by retirement at the mandatcry
retirement age, by death, or by voluntary retirement at certain
specific ages prior to the mandatory retirement age.

The Company and certain of its domestic subsidiaries have
two types of pension plans for employees; a non-centributory
funded defined benefit pension plan and a defined contribution
pension plan.

Prior to January 1, 2004, the contributory funded defined
benefit pensicn plan, established under the Japanase Welfare
Pension Insurance Law, covered a substitutional portion managed
by the Company on behalf of the governiment and a corporate
portion established at the discretion of the Company. In accordance
with the Defined Benefit Pension plan Law enacted in April 2002,
the Company applied for an exemption from obligation (o pay
benefits for future employee services related to the substitutional
portion which would result in the return of the pension cbligations

were substantially the same as those of the fourth amended and
restaled revolving credil agreements discussed above.

and related assets to the government upon approval. The Company
cbiained approval for exemption from the future obligation from the
Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare on January 1, 2004.

In the current year, the Company and certain of its domestic
subsidiaries applied for return of the substitutional portion of past
pensich obligations to the government and obtained approval
from the Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare on Aprit 1, 2005.
The Company and certan of its domestic subsidiaries thereafter
returned the substitutional portion of the pension obligations and
related assets to the government in July 2005 and recognized
¥78,572 million {$665,470 thousand) as income for the difierence
between the balance of the retirement benefit liabilities brought
forward and the amount actually returned for the year endedi
December 31, 2005,

According to the enactment of the Defined Contribution
Pension Plan Law in October 2001, the Company and certain of
its domestic subsidiaries implemented a defined contribution
pension plan and a retirement benefit prepayment plan in April
2005 by which the former severance lump-sum payment plan
was partially replaced. The Company and certain of its domestic
subsidiaries applied acccunting treatments specified in the
guidance issued by the ASBJ. The effect of this transfer was 1o
increase income before income taxes and minority interests by
¥496 million (34,201 thousand) and was recorded as other
income in the consolidated statement of income for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

The liability for employees’ retirement benefits at December 31, 2005 and 2004 consist of the following;

Thousands of

Millons of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2004 2005

Projected benefit ohligation ¥ 549,650 ¥ 685,060 $ 4,655,289
Fair value of plan assets (377,855) {423,945) (3,200,263)
Unrecognized prior service cost 19,449 38407 164,724
Unrecognized actual loss (101,918) {108.069) {863,200)
Unrecognized transitional obligation (5,504) (11,808) {46,616)
Prepaid benefit cost 121 20,169 1,025
Other 63,436 42,204 537,275
Net liability ¥ 147,379 ¥ 242,020 S 1,248,234
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Certain subsidiaries adopt a simplified methed of calculating
their retirement benefit obligation.

Of the accrued pension and liability for retirement benefits
noted above, a liability for postretirement benefits of ¥47,241
million ($400,110 thousand) and ¥37,7 15 million is included in
the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

In addition to the above, certain subsidiaries alsc participate in
a multi-employer pension plan covering all of their employees.
There existed ¥278 million ($2,355 thousand) and ¥221 million at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, of pension assets at
fair value in the multi-employer pension plan; however, the portion
of these assets belonging to the subsidiaries could not be
reasonably calculated.

The components of the nat periodic benefit costs for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2004 2003 2005

Service cost ¥ 16,752 ¥ 17,514 ¥ 20,0900 $ 141,882

Interest cost 21,866 25,3086 25,656 185,195

Expected return on plan assets (21,110) (24,270) (22,958) (178,792)

Amortization of transitional cbligation 1,317 1,968 1,969 11,154

Recognized actuarial loss 9,017 7,750 12,290 76,370

Amortization of prior service cost {1,881) (1,252) 1,279 (15,931)

Net periodic benefit costs 25,961 27,016 38,326 219,878

Gains on return of substitutional portion of the govemmental pension program (78,572) —-— — (665,470}
Gains on transfer from the severance lump-sum payment o a defined

contribution pension plan and & retirerment benefit prepayment plan {496) — — (4,201)

Total

¥ (83,107) ¥ 27,016 ¥ 38326 $ (449,793)

Net periodic benefit costs noted above for certain subsidiaries
do not include pension costs for defined contribution pension
plans of ¥5,296 milion ($44,855 thousand), ¥4,011 million and

¥4,110 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003, respactively.

Assumptions used for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are set forth as follows:

2005 2004 2003
The Company
and domestic Overseas
subsidiaries subsidiaries
Discount rate 2.5% 5.2% t0 6.0% Principally 2.5% Principally 2.5%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 0.7% to 3.0% 7.0% to 9.0% Principally 3.0% Principally 3.0%
Amortization period of prior service cost 10 years 3to0 12 years 3to 12 years 3to 12 years
Recognized period of actuarial gain or loss 10 years 7 to 12 years Principally 10 years  Principally 10 years
Amortization period of transitional obligation 10 years — 10 years 10 years

Note 8— Shareholders’ equity

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to the
Code to which certain amendments became effective from
Octiober 1, 2001, The Code was revised whereby common stock
par value was eliminated resulting in all shares being recorded
with no par value and at least 50% of the issue price of new
shares is required to be recorded as common stock and the
remaining net procesds as additional paid-in capital, which is
included in capital surplus, The Code permits Japanese
companies, upon approval of the Board of Directors, to issue
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shares to existing shareholders without consideration as a stock
split. Such issuance of shares generally does not give rise to
changes within the shareholders” accounts.

The revised Code also provides that an amount at least equal
to 10% of the aggregate amount of ¢cash dividends and certain
other appropriations of retained earnings associated with cash
outlays applicable to each period shall be appropriated as a legal
raserve {a component of retained earnings) until such reserve and
additicnal paid-in capital equals 25% of common stock. The




amount of 1otal additional paid-in capital and legal reserve that
exceeds 25% of the common stock may be available for
dividends by resolution of the shareholders. In addition, the
Code permits the transfer of a portion of additional paid-in
capital and legal reserve to the common stock by resolution of
the Board of Dirgctors. The Company's legal reserve amount,
which is included in retained earnings, totals ¥31,279 million
($264.919 thousand) and ¥31,279 milion at December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

The revised Code eliminated restrictions on the repurchase
and use of treasury stock, allowing Japanese companies to
repurchase treasury stock by a resolution of the sharsholders at
the general shareholders meeting, and dispose of such treasury
stock by reselution of the Board of Directors beginning April 1,
2002. The repurchased amount of treasury stock cannot excead
the amount available for future dividend plus amount of common
stock, capital surplus or legal reserve to be reduced in the

Note 9— Stock-based compensation

The Company has a stock option ptan. The stock option plan
which was approved at the general shareholders meeting

case where such reduction was resclved at the general
shareholders meeting.

The amount of retained eamings available for dividends under
the Code at December 31, 2005 was ¥638,824 million ($5,410,553
thousand} based on the amount recorded in the parent company's
general books of account. In addition o the provision that requires
an appropriation for a legal reserve in connection with the cash
payment, the Code imposes certain limitations on the amount of
retained eamings avallable for dividends.

Dividends are approved by the shareholders at a meeting
held subsequent o the { scal year to which the dividends are
applicable. Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid upon
resolution of the Board of Directors, subject to certain limitations
imposed by the Code.

The Company issuec 1,850 thousand shares for the year
ended December 31, 2003 of common stock in connection with
conversions of bonds.

provides options for purchases of the Company's common stock
for the directors and selected employeas of the Company.,

The date of grant, the number of grant options and exercise period at December 31, 2005 ars as follows:

Date of grant Number of grart options @c_)u_sands ol shares} Exercise period
March 30, 2000 Directors 156 from April 1, 2002 to March 31, 2007
Selected employees 59 from April 1, 2002 to March 31, 2007
March 28, 2001 Directors 79 from April 1, 2003 to March 31, 2008
Selected employees 39 from April 1, 2003 to March 31, 2008
March 28. 2002 Directors 110 from April 1, 2004 to March 31, 2009
Selecled employees 147 from April 1, 2004 to March 31, 2008
March 28, 2003 Directors 129 frem April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2010
Selected employees 107 from April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2010
March 30, 2004 Directors 120 from April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2011
Selected employees 144 from April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2011
March 30, 2005 Directors 120 from April 1, 2007 to March 31, 2012
Selected employess ~ 138 from April 1, 2007 to March 31, 2012
Total 1,348

The exercise price is equal to the higher of eithar 1.05 times
the monthly average closing market price of the Company’'s
common siock traded in the Tokyo Stock Exchange during the
month preceding the date of grant, or the closing market price on
the date of grant.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, 66 thousand,
7 thousand and 26 thousand shares which were granted at
March 29, 2001, March 2€, 2002 and March 28, 2003,
respectively, were exercised. At December 31, 2005. the balance
of the exercisable options was 826 thousand shares.
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Note 10— Net income per share

Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per share (“EPS") for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003 is as follows:

Millions of yen Thousands of shares Yen LS. dollars
Net income  Weighted—average shares EPS
For the year ended December 31, 2005:
Basic EPS
Net income available to common shareholders ¥ 180,026 793,348 ¥ 226.92 $ 1.92
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 226
Diluted EPS
Net income for computation ¥ 180,026 793,574 ¥ 226.86 $ 1.92
For the year ended December 31, 2004:
Basic EPS
Net income available to commoen shareholders Y 113,757 818,634 ¥ 138.96
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 108
Diluted EPS
Net income for computation ¥ 113,757 818,742 ¥ 13894
For the year ended December 31, 2003:
Basic EFPS
Net income available to common shareholders ¥ 88,052 856,951 ¥ 102.75
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 28
Convertible bonds 14 1,705
Diluted EPS
Net income for computation ¥ 88,066 858,682 Y  102.66
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Note 11— Research and development costs

Research and develcpment costs are charged to income as incurred.

Research and developmenl costs are ¥79,4 15 million ($672,608 thousand}, ¥72.898 million and ¥70,967 million for the years ended

December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Note 12— Other income {expenses)

Loss on fire incident and insurance claims received

The Company suffered a loss in connection with the fire in the
rubber mixing process al the Company's Tochigi Plant on
September 8, 2003. The amount recorded consists of disposal
of fixed assets, disposal of product inventory and other cosls
including removal expenses, amounting to ¥ 1,318 million, ¥777
millicn and ¥1,738 million, respectively. During the year ended
December 31, 2003, the Company recorded an insurance claims
received with respect to the fire of ¥4,340 million,

Gains on sales of property, plant and equipment

Cains on sales of property, plant and equipment for the year
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 mainly consist of gains
on sales of land.

Impairment losses on assets

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company and
its subsidiaries reviewed their long-lived assets for impairment.
As a result, impairment losses on assets are mainly recognized
for ceriain asset group of diversified business due 1o worse
performance caused by market price erosion, raw malerial price
steep increase and others, and for certain asset group of tire
business due to a significant decline in the assets' markel value.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, certain
subsidiaries in the Americas recognized an impairment loss for
property, plant and equipment related primarily to polymer
operaticns In the Americas.

Loss on provision for 2nvironmental remediation

During the year endad December 31, 2005, the Company and
certain of its domestic cubsidiaries provided ¥5.887 million
{849,860 thousand) as -uture environmental remediation.

Loss related to voluntary tire replacement

During the year endad December 31, 2005, a U.S. subsidiary and
the Ford Motor Company ("Ford”) reached a joint settlernent of

all outstanding financial issues associated with the August 2000
voluntary safety recall and Ford's May 2001 tire replacement
program. Under this agreement, the subsidiary paid Ford $240
million (¥26,503 million) for the settlement,

During the year ended December 31, 2004, a U.S. subsidiary
recorded costs of tire replacement for a U.S, voluntary safety
campaign to replace tires, free of any charge to custormers, which
was announced in February 2004,
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Note 13— Income taxes

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to
Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate,
resutied in normal effective statutory tax rates of approximately
40.6% for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 41.9% for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

On March 31, 2003, a tax reform law concerning enterprise
tax was enacted in Japan which changed the normal effective

statutory tax rate from 41.9% to 40.6%, effective for years
beginning on or after April 1, 2004. The effect of this change was
to decrease deferred tax assets by ¥624 million, increase income
taxes—deferred by ¥2,346 milion and increase net unrealized
gains on securities by ¥1,722 million in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2003.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards which resulied in deferred tax assets and liabilities at

Decamber 31, 2005 andg 2004 are as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Deferred tax assets:

Accrued pension and liability for retirement benefits ¥ 73,510 ¥ 89,729 $ 622597
Accrued expenses 34,223 32672 289,853
Unrealized intercompany profits 24,020 24,231 203,439
Net operating loss carryforwards for tax purposes 54,471 45177 461,345
Depreciable assets 15,025 17,966 127,255
Other 48,962 47,288 414,687
Less valuation allowance {16,257) {48,813} (137,690)
Total 233,954 208,310 1,981,486

Deferred tax liabilities:
Reserve for deferred gains related fixed assets for tax purposes (10,961) (10,822) (92,835)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities (85,508) (55,916) (724,214)
Other (24,269) {18,104) {205,548)
Total (120,738} (84,842) (1,022,597)
Net deferred tax assets ¥ 113,216 ¥ 123,468 $ 958,889

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate reflected in the consolidated
statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 is as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Normal effective statutory tax rate 40.6% 41.9% 41.9%
Expenses not deductible for income tax purpose 27 3.3 3.6
Lower income tax rates applicable to income in certain overseas countries (3.2) 2.7) 2.3}
Tax credit ior research and development costs of domestic companies (2.5) 3.7) —
Change in valuation allowance for deferred tax assets {13.9) (4.5) 1.6
Other—net 0.9 0.4 (2.4)

Actual effective tax rate 24.6% 34.7% 42.4%
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Note 14— Derivatives

The Companies enter into foreign currency forward contracts,
currency swap contracts and currency option contracts to hedge
forgign currency exchange risk associated with certain assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. The Companies
enter into interest raie swap contracts to manage their interest
rale exposure on certain liabilities. In addition, the Companies
enter into commodity future contracts o hedge the risk of
fluctuation of commaodity prices for raw materials.

All derivative transactions are entered into to hedge foreign
currency, interest and commadity price exposures that arise in
the course of the Companies’ business. Accordingly, the market
risk in these derivatives is basically offset by opposite movements
in the value of hedged assets or liabililies. Because the
counterparties 1o these derivatives are limited to major

international financial institutions, the Companies do not
anticipate any losses arising from credit risk, Derivative
transactions entered into by the Companies have been made
in accordance with inlernal palicies which regulate the
authorization and credit limit amounts.

Foreign currency forward contracts and currency swap
contracts which qualify for hedge accounting for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004 are excluded from the disclosure
of market value information.

The contract or no ional amounis of derivatives which are
shown in the following table do not represent the amounis
exchanged by the part es and do not measure the Companies’
exposure to credit or market risk.

The outstanding balance of derivative contracts at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Miions of yven
2005 2004
Contract Unrealized gairs Contract Unrealized gans
amount Far valug (losse:s) amount Fair value losses)
Foreign currency forward coniracts:
Seli:
U.S. dollar ¥ 50511 ¥ 50885 ¥ @74y ¥ 451508 ¥ 44085 ¥ 1023
Euro 36,340 36,399 (59) 48,097 49,443 (1.346)
Australian dollar 6,727 6,765 (38) 6,115 6,229 (114)
British pound 551 547 4 617 624 (7)
Cther 7,357 7,574 (217) 6,486 6,718 (2562)
Buy:
U.S. dollar 5,509 5,550 4 6,890 6,598 (292)
Japanese yen 554 542 (12} 7i2 688 (24)
QOther 1,721 1,740 19 1,730 1,692 (38)
Currency swap contracts:
Indian rupee receipt, Japanese yen payment 1,402 {55) (55) 1,402 99) (99
Interest rate swap contracts;
Floating rate receipt, fixed rale payment 18,283 (705) (7051 23,752 {1,088} {1.088)
Fixed rate receipt, fioating rate paymeant 6,075 {74) (74} — — —
Fixed rate receipt, fixed rate payment 4,016 44 44 — — —
Commodity future contracts:
Natural rubber:
Buy — — - 604 588 (18)
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Thousands of U.S. dollars

2005
Contract Unrealized gains
amount Fair value flosses)
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Sell:
U.8. dollar $ 427,806 5 431,820 S§ (4,014)
Euro 307,783 308,283 {500)
Australian dollar 56,975 57,297 {322}
British pound 4,667 4,633 34
Other 62,310 64,148 {1,838}
Buy:
U.S. dollar 46,659 47,006 347
Japanese yen 4,692 4,590 {102
Other 14,576 14,737 161
Currency swap contracts:
Indian rupee receipt, Japanese yen payment 11,874 (466) (466)
Interest rate swap contracts:
Floating rate receipt, fixed rate payment 154,849 (5,971) (5.971)
Fixed rate receipt, floating rate payment 51,453 (627) (627)
Fixed rate receipt, fixed rate payment 34,014 373 373
Note 15— Contingent liabilities and commitments
(a) Gontingent liabilities
At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Companies have the following contingent liabilities:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Trade notes discounted ¥ 8,472 ¥ 6,880 3 71,754
Guarantees and similar items of bank borrowings 672 687 5,692
Total ¥ 9,144 ¥ 7.567 $ 77,446

(b} Operating lease commitments

The Companies lease certain land, machinery, vehicles, computer equipment, office space and other assets. The minimum lease

commitments under noncancelable operating leases at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2005 2004 2005
Due within one year ¥ 30,876 ¥ 28177 5 261,506
Due after one year 176,363 160,005 1,493,715
Total ¥ 207,239 ¥ 188,182 $ 1,755,221

(c} Litigation

See Note 17 for contingent legal liabilities in relation to the voluntary tire recall.




Note 16— Segment information

Information about industry segments, geographic segments and sales to customers outside of Japan, for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003 is as follows:

(a} Information by industry segment

Year ended December 31, 2005

Millions of yen

Ehmination or

Tires  Dwersiied products “otal corporale Consolidated
Net sales:
External customers ¥ 2,152,950 ¥ 538,426 ¥ 2,691,376 — ¥ 2,691,376
Inter-segment 3,838 26,342 30,180 ¥ (30,180) -
Total 2,156,788 564,768 2,721,556 (30,180} 2,691,376
Cperating expenses 1,988,876 518,81 2,507,767 {30,242} 2,477,525
Cperating income ¥ 167,912 ¥ 45,877 Y 213,789 ¥ 62 ¥ 213,851
Identifiable assets ¥ 2,285,669 ¥ 434,182 ¥ 2719,851 ¥ {9,889) ¥ 2,709,962
Depreciation and amortization ¥ 109,483 ¥ 18,126 ¥ 127,609 — ¥ 127,609
Impairment losses on assets ¥ 2,966 ¥ 1,044 ¥ 4,010 — ¥ 4,010
Capital expenditures ¥ 183,121 ¥ 25,229 ¥ 208,350 — ¥ 208,350
Year ended Decernber 31, 2004 Millons of yen
Elirmination or
Tires  Diversified products “otal corporate Consohdated
Net sales:
External customers ¥ 1,927,989 ¥ 488,696 Y 2,416,685 — ¥ 2,416,685
Inter-segment 3.838 24,084 27.922 Y (27,922 —
Total 1,931,827 512,780 2,444 607 (27.922) 2,416,685
Cperating expenses 1,771,536 476.286 2,247 822 {28,834) 2,218,988
Operating income ¥ 160.291 ¥ 36,494 Y 196,785 i g12 ¥ 197,697
{dentifiable assels ¥ 1,945,245 ¥ 397,076 ¥ 2342321 ¥ {8,613} ¥ 2,333,708
Depreciation and amoriization Y 94.581 Y 16.810 ¥ 111,491 — ¥ 111,491
Capital expenditures ¥ 170.223 ¥ 22.187 ¥ 192,450 — ¥ 182410
Year ended December 31, 2003 Millons of yen
Elrmination or
Tires  Dwersified products “otal corporate Cansohdated
Net sales:
External customers ¥ 1,836,395 Y 467,522 ¥ 2303317 — ¥ 2,303,917
Inter-segment 1,577 17,049 18,526 ¥ (18,626) —
Total 1,837.972 484,571 2,322,543 (18,626) 2,303,917
Operating expenses 1,689,662 449,848 2139510 (18,887) 2,120,623
Operaling income ¥ 148,310 ¥ 34,623 ¥ 182,333 Y 361 ¥ 183,294
identifiable assets Y 1,862,081 ¥ 367,529 ¥ 2,228,520 ¥ (9,007) ¥ 2,220,613
Depreciation and amortization ¥ 87,683 ¥ 16,690 ¥ 104,383 — ¥ 104,383
Capital expenditures ¥ 140,188 ¥ 16,486 Y 156,572 — ¥ 156,572
Year ended December 31, 2005 Thousands of U.S. dellars
Elimination or
Tires  Dwersified products Jatal corporate Consolidated
Net sales:
External customers $18,234,522 S 4,560,227 $22,794,749 — $22,794,749
Inter-segment 32,506 223,105 255,611 S (255,611) -
Total 18,267,028 4,783,332 23,050,360 (255,611) 22,794,749
Operating expenses 16,844,889 4,394,774 21,239,663 {256,136) 20,983,527
Operating income $ 1,422.139 S 388,558 $§ 1,810,697 s 525 $ 1,811,222
Identifiable assets $19,358,592 S 3,677,327 $23,035,319 $  {83,755) $22,952,164
Depreciation and amaortization § 927,272 $ 153,518 $ 1,080,791 — $ 1,080,791
Impairment losses on assets E) 25121 5 8,842 $ 33,3963 — S 33,963
Capital expenditures $ 1,550,953 $ 213678 $ 1,764,631 — $ 1,764 631

The major products and business of each industry segment are as follows:
Tires: Tires and tubes, wheels and accessories, auio maintenance, etc.
Diversified products: Chemical products, industrial products. sporting goods. bicycles, elc.
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{b} Information by geographic segment

Year ended December 31, 2005 Milions of yen
Elimination or
Japan The Americas Europe Other Totat corporate Consolidated
Net sales:
External customers ¥ 858478 ¥ 1,151,513 ¥ 363,131 ¥ 318,254 ¥ 2,691,376 — ¥ 2,691,376
Inter-segment 303,857 6,446 3,820 179,689 493812 ¥ (493,812} -
Total 1,162,335 1,157,959 366,951 497,943 3,185,188 (493,812) 2,691,376
COperating expenses 1,024,027 1,118,994 347 327 476,853 2,967,201 {489,6786) 2,477,525
Operating income ¥ 138308 ¥ 38,965 ¥ 19,624 ¥ 21,090 ¥ 217,887 ¥ (4,136) ¥ 213,851
Identifiable assets ¥ 1338435 ¥ 820286 ¥ 366252 ¥ 370934 ¥ 2895507 ¥ (185945) ¥ 2,708,952
Year ended Dacember 31, 2004 Millions of yen
Elimination or
Japan The Americas Europe Other Total corporate Consolidated
Net sales:
External customers ¥ 814625 ¥ 1,013520 ¥ 321895 ¥ 286845 ¥ 2416685 — ¥ 2,416,685
Inter-segment 254,237 5418 3,901 138,538 402,095 ¥ (402,095) —
Total 1,068,862 1.018,93% 325,586 405,383 2,818,780 {402,095) 2,416,685
Qperating expenses 937,743 992 280 303,579 387,719 2,621,321 {402,333) 2,218,988
Operating income ¥ 131,119 ¥ 26658 ¥ 22017 ¥ 17,664 ¥ 197450 ¥ 238 ¥ 197,697
Identifiable assets ¥ 1249822 ¥ 633153 ¥ 323718 ¥ 285543 ¥ 2492236 ¥ {(158528) ¥ 2,333,708
Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen
Elimination or
Japan The Americas Europe Other Total corporate Consolidated
Net sales:
External customers ¥ 803095 ¥ 972283 ¥ 287416 ¥ 241,147 ¥ 2303917 — ¥ 2,303,917
Inter-segment 252,047 5326 3,723 111,496 372,592 ¥ (372592) -
Total 1,055,142 977615 291,139 352,613 2,676,509 (372,592) 2,303,917
Operating expenses 926,006 958,111 275,690 331,107 2,490,014 {370,281) 2,120,623
Operating income ¥ 129136 ¥ 19,504 ¥ 15449 ¥ 21,6506 ¥ 185595 ¥ (2301 ¥ 183,294
Identifiable assets ¥ 1235150 ¥ 611,800 ¥ 264172 ¥ 252016 ¥ 2364147 ¥ (143534) ¥ 2220613
Year ended December 31, 2005 Thousands of U.S. dollars
Elirnination or
Japan The Americas Furope Other Total corporate Consolidated
Net sales:
Externa) customers $ 7,270,924 §$ 9,752,799 $ 3,075,557 § 2,695469 $22,794,749 —  $22,794,749
Inter-segment 2,673,533 54 595 32,354 1,521,884 4,182,366 S (4,182,366) —
Total 9,844,457 9,807,394 3,107,911 4,217,353 26,977,115 (4,182,366) 22,794,749
Qperating expenses 8,673,050 9,477,378 2,941,704 4,038,7N1 25,130,863 (4,147,336) 20,983,527
Operating income $ 1,171,407 & 330,016 166,207

e lens

5 178622 § 1,846252 § {35030) $ 1,811,222
5 3,141645 $24527,035 S (1,574,871} $22,952,164

alen
enlen

5
3 3,101,990

Identifiable assets $11,335945 % 6,947,455

Major countries and areas included in each geographic segment are as follows:
The Americas: United States, Canada, Mexico, Venezuela, Brazil, etc.
Europe: Germany, United Kingdom, France, Italy, Spain, etc.

Other: Asia Pacific, Africa, etc.
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{c) Overseas sales

Overseas sales by area and percentage of overseas sales over consolidated net sales for the yzars ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and

2003 are as follows:

Armount Percentage
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. ol ars %
2005 2004 2003 2005 2005 2004 2003
Areas:

The Amencas ¥ 1,145,913 ¥ 1,007,408 ¥ 967544 5 89,705,370 426% 41.7% 42.0%

Europe 371,394 329,424 294,900 3,145,541 13.8 13.6 12.8

QOther 427,976 363,767 331,419 3,624,764 15.9 15.1 14.4
Overseas sales ¥ 1,945283 ¥ 1,700,599 ¥ 1,593,863 516,475,675 72.3% 70.4% 69.2%
Net sales ¥ 2691,376 ¥ 2416,685 ¥ 2303,917 $22,794,749 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Major countries and areas included in each geographic area are as follows:
The Americas: United States, Canada, Mexico, Venezuela. Brazil, etc.

Europe:

Other: Asia Pacific, Middle East, Africa. etc.

Gemmany, United Kingdom, France, Italy, Spain, etc.

Note 17— Voluntary tire recall costs and legal liabilities

Bridgestone Americas Holding, Inc. and/or certain of its
subsidiaries {collectively, "BSA" are defendants in numerous
product liability lawsuits and claims seeking compensatory and,
in some cases, punitive damages based on allegations that
death, personal injury, property damage and/or other loss
resulted from accidents caused by tire tread separations or
other tire failures, and the Company has been named as a
co-defendant in some of those cases. Many of these cases
involve certain Firestone Radial ATX, ATX I, and Wilderness AT
tires that either were part of BSA's voluntary safety recall that
was announced in August 2000 (and completed in August 2001)
or were under investigation by the U.S. Naticnal Highway Traffic
Satety Administraticn {"NHTSA"), which has since closed all
investigations of BSA's products. Many of these cases also
name the Ford Motor Company {"Ford") as a co-defendant,
based on various allegations related to the Ford Explorer

(the vehicte involved in many of the alleged accidenis involving
tread separations).

In May 2001, Ford announced a campaign to replace all
Wilderness AT tires mounted on Ford vehicles without any prior
agreement between BSA and Ford. This campaign was
completed in March 2002. Since BSA's August 2000 recall, the
two companies discussed their respective safety tire replacement
campaigns, and in October 2005, they reached an agreement
resolving ail issues between them which were related to BSA's
August 2000 recall or the 2001 Ford replacement program. In
accordance with tha settlement agreement, BSA paid Ford 5240
miflion in October 2005.

Various purported class action lawsuits have also been filed
against BSA. generally seeking expansicn of the August 2000
recall or relief for alleged economic losses sustained because
of either recalled tires or other tires investigated by the NHTSA,
or the manner of the rocall's implementation, and the Company
has been named as a co-defendant in some of those cases.
Many also seek punitive damages or injunctive relief. In May
2002, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit
("Seventh Circuit™) overturned a trial court ruling certifying classes
against BSA, the Corpany and Ford in the consaclidated federa!
cases and, in January 2003, the U.S. Supreme Court declined
1o hear plaintifis’ appeal.

In June 2003, the Seventh Circuit ruled that state courts
cannot certify a natiorwide class action lawsuit where there
has been a federal de ermination that nationwide certification
is inappropriate. Plaintiffs also filed purported class action
lawsuits in several state jurisdictions, and state courts in llinois
and South Carolina cerlified state-wide classes against BSA.

In July 2003, BSA reached an agreement in principle with
plaintiffs in certain of the class action cases on a settlement
that would resolve the then-outstanding claims in the state
class action cases. The proposed settlement was filed with,
and preliminarily approved by, a state court in July 2003, In
March 2004, the state court ruled that the settlement was fair,
adequate and reasonable. Variocus objectors initially opposed
the settlement and filed an appeal to have the setllement sat
aside. However, in March 2005, the objectors agreed wiih
plaintifis to partially arnend the aforementioned settlement
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and filed a motion to dismiss their appeal. The court approved
the settlement, which became final in May 2005. BSA is
proceeding to implement the terms of the seitlement.

In the individual product liability lawsuits and claims, BSA's
approach is to offer a reasonable settlement and to defend
its position aggressivety where such settlement is not possible.
There can be no assurance that product liability lawsuits and
claims will be resolved as currently envisioned and, accordingly,
the ultimate iiability could be higher than the recorded liability
on the Balance Sheet, which consists of reasonably estimated
costs related to the voluntary tire recall. However, in the opinion
of BSA management, the ultimate disposition of these product
liabiiity lawsuits and claims could possibly be material to the
results of operations in any one accounting period but will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial position or liquidity
of BSA.

In Novemnber 2002, an attorney who had filed a purported
class action suit alleging that all the BSA's Steeltex tires (7 million
of which are estimated to be in service as of December 31, 2005}
were defective, petitioned the NHTSA 1o reopen an investigation
of such tires which that agency had closed in April 2002. The
NHTSA denied that petition in June 2003, and in March 2004,
the court denied plaintiffs’ motion for class centification. Plaintiffs
then filted & renewed maotion for class certification and another
petition for NHTSA to investigate (i) all Steetltex tires generally
and (i) those Steeltex tires used on ambulances. The NHTSA
denied this petition in Septemper 2004 and closed its
investigation, and the court denied plaintiffs’ renewed maction for
class certification in February 2005. Plaintiffs’ counsel recentty
filed two new purported class actions suits in Los Angeles federal
court, naming a subsidiary of BSA and the Company as

Note 18— Subsequent events

On February 22, 2006, the Company retired 20 million shares of
common stock at a cost of ¥38,081 million {$322,529 thousand)
in accordance with the approval of the Company’s Board of
Directors meeting held on February 17, 2006 subject to Section
212 of the Code. The number of issued shares after the retirerent
is 813,102,321 ghares.

On March 30, 2008, the shareholders of the Company
approved payment of a cash dividend of ¥14.0 ($0.12) per share,
or a total of ¥10,839 milion {$92,648 thousand), to shareholders

defendants, and has indicated an intent io file another petition
with the NHTSA. BSA management has thoroughly investigated
this issue, and continues to menitor the performance of the tires
in question. BSA, except with regard to a February 2004
voluntary safety campaign, (i) does not believe that a recall or
similar action concerning its Steeltex tires is necessary or
appropriate; (i) strongly beligves that the related litigaticn is
without merit; and (iii) plans to vigorously defend its position.
Accordingly, BSA has made no provision for any related
contingent liability.

Two securities cases filed in January 2001 against BSA and
the Company, alleging both misrepresentations regarding the
quality of the tires previously under investigation by the NHTSA
and viclations of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act, were
consolidated, and, in October 2002, dismissed. In February
2003, the plaintiffs’ motion to recpen the court’s judgment was
denied by the court. Plaintiffs appealed, and in October 2004 the
federal appellate counl reversed the trial court's dismissal of the
securities fraud action as 1o two statements in the Company’s
1999 annual report and BSA's statement made in August 2000,
and ordered that the action be sent back to the trial court for
further proceedings. In November 2004, BSA filed a petition for
rehearing with all members of the appellate court, which petition
was denied in May 2005. BSA also petitionad the U.S. Supreme
Court for a review and hearing. That petition was denied in
October 2005. As a result, the case has now been remanded 1o
the trial court. In November 2005, BSA and the Company filed
supplemental memoranda in support of the defendants’ motions
1o dismiss. Those motions are currently pending. BSA and the
Company iniend to vigorously defend themselves and believe
these cases are without merit.

of record at December 31, 2005. In addition, a stock option plan
was approved, which provides options to purchase 271 thousand
shares of the Company’s common stock by directors and selected
employees of the Company. The exercise price is equal to the
higher of either 1.05 times the monthly average closing market
price of the Company's comman stock traded in the Tokyo Stock
Exchange in the month preceding the date of grant, or the closing
market price of that on the date of grant. The exercise period of
the stock options is from April 1, 2008 to March 31, 2013.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of
Bridgestone Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Bridgestone Corperation and subsidiaries as of December
31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2005, all expressed in Japanese yen. Thase consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an oginicn on these consclidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audiis in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit 1o obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstaternent, An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting princigles used and significant estirmates made by management, as wel as evaluating the
overall financial staternent presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In cur cpinicn. the consclidated financial statemenits referred 10 above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Bridgestone Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2004, and the consolidated resulis
of their cperations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with
accounting principies generally accepted in Japan.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts inte U.S. dollar amounts and. in our opinion, such

iranslation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 2. Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented sotely for the
convenience of readers outside Japan.

CUE Zote Jh

March 30, 2006

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Major subsidiaries and affiliates

Ownership
{inclucling
indirect Capital
Country Company ownership)  (in thousands) Operations
Argentina Bridgestone Firestone Argentina S.A.l.C. 100.0%  ARS8,280 Manufacture and sale of tires
Austrafia Bridgestone Australia Ltd. 60.3%  A$18,259 Manufacture and sale of tires
Bridgestone Earthmover Tyres Pty. Lid. 100.0%  A%$7,000 Sale of off-the-road tires for
mining and construction vehicles
Belgium Bridgestone Europe NV/SA 100.0%  €724,668 Management of European
operations and tire marketing
Bridgestone Aircraft Tire (Europe) S.A. 100.0% €1,388 Retread and sale of aircraft tires
Brazil Bridgestone Firestone do Brasil 100.0% Ri102,918 Manufacture and sale of tires
Industria e Comercio Ltda.
Canada Bridgestone Firestone Canada Inc. 100.0%  C$98,401 Manufacture and sale of tires and
sale of automotive components
Chile Bridgestone Firestone Chile, S.A. 89.7%  US$38,980 Manufacture and sale of tires
Bridgestone Off-the-Road Tire Latin America S A, 90.0%  US$3.000 Sale of off-the-road tires for mining
and construction vehiclas
China Bridgestone (China) Investment Co., Ltd. 100.0%  USS$67.730 Management of Chinese tire operations
and sale of tires
Bridgestone (Tianjin) Tire Co., Ltd. 94.5% US$49,016 Manufacture and sale of tires
Bridgestone {Shenyang) Tire Co., Ltd. 98.5%  US320,000 Manufacture andg sale of tires
Bridgestone (Wuxi) Tire Co., Ltd. 100.0%  US$48,340 Manufscture and sale of tires
Bridgestone Aircraft Tire Company {Asia) Limited  100.0%  HK$21,000 Retread and sale of aircraft tires
Costa Rica Bridgestone Firestone de Costa Rica, S.A. 98.6% US$9,631 Manufacture and sale of tires
France Bridgestone France 5.A.S. 100.0%  €74,090 Manufacture and sale of tires and
sale of autocmotive components
Germany Bridgestone Deutschland G.m.b.H. 100.0% €14,000 Sale of tires and automoative components
India Bridgestone India Private Ltd. 100.0% RP2,753,000 Manufacture and sale of tires
Indonesia P.T. Bridgestone Tire Indonesia 54.3%  US$24,960 Manufacture and sale of tires
[taly Bridgestone Italia S.p.A. 100.0% €38,775 Manufaciure and safe of tires and
sale of automotive compeonents
Japan Bridgestone Cycle Co., Ltd. 100.0%  ¥1,870,000 Manufacture and sale of bicycles and
industrial machinery
Bridgestone Flowtech Corporation 100.0%  ¥484,000 Manufacture and sale of industrial
hydraulic hoses
Bridgestone Elastech Co., Ltd. 100.0%  ¥2,000,000 Manufacture and sale of antivibration
compenents
Bridgestone Kaseihin Seizo Corporation 100.0%  ¥450,000 Manufacture and sale of synthetic
resin products
Bridgestone Sports Co., Ltd. 100.0%  ¥3,000.000 Manufacture and sale ¢f sperting goods
Asahi Carbon Co., Ltd. 99.4%  ¥1,720,000 Production and sale of carbon black
Bridgestone Finance Corporation 100.0%  ¥50,000 Lending, purchasing of sales receivables,
and outsourced processing of accounting
and salary payments
Bridgestone Tire Hokkaide Hanbai K.K. 100.0%  ¥2,033,200 Sale of tires
(Bridgestone Tire Hokkaido Sales Co., Ltd.)
Bridgestone Tire Tokye Hanbai K.K. 100.0%  ¥1,050,000 Sale of tires
{Bridgestone Tira Tokyo Sales Co., Ltd)
Bridgestone Tire Chubu Hanbai K K. 99.7%  ¥1,380,000 Sale of tires
{Bridgestone Tire Chubu Sales Co., Ltd.)
Bridgestone Tire Kyushu Hanbai K.K. 100.0%  ¥2,000,00C Sale of tires

{Bridgestcne Tire Kyushu Sales Co., Ltd.)
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Ownership

{including
indirect Capital
Country Company ownership)  (in thousands) Operations
Mexico Bridgestone Firestone de Mexico, S.A. de CV,  100.0%  NP455.987 Manufacture and sale of tires
The Netherlands  Bridgestone Benelux B.V. 100.0% €2,515 Sale of tires and automotive componeants
Bridgestone Finance Europe B.V. 100.0% €225 Lending and purchasing of sales receivables
New Zealand Bridgestone New Zealand Ltd. 100.0%  NZS32.848 Manufacture and sale of tires
Poiand Bridgestone Poland Sp. z o.0. 100.0%  Z1 558,058 Manufacture and sale of tires
Russia Bridgestone C.I.S. L.L.C. 100.0% RBB8.474 Sale of tires
Singapore Bridgestone Singapore Pte Ltd 100.0%  US$674 Natural rubber trading
South Africa Bridgestone Scuth Africa Holdings (Pty) Ltd. 84.3% ZAR18 Holding company for tire
manufacturing and marketing company
Spain Bridgestone Hispania $.A. 99.7% €56,726 Manufacture and sale of tires and
sale of aulomotive components
Taiwan Bridgestone Taiwan Co., Ltd. 80.0%  NT$810,000 Manufacture and sale of tires
Thailand Thai Bridgestone Co., Ltd. £69.2%  B400.000 Manufacture and sale of tires
Bridgestone Tire Manufacturing {Thailand) Co., Ltd.  100.0%  B5,260,000 Manufaciure and sale of tires
Bridgestone Natyral Rubber (Thailand) Co., Lid.  100.0%  B447,000 Processing of naiural rubber
Turkey Brisa Bridgestone Sabanci Lastik 429%  TL7.441 Manufacture and sale of lires
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S.
United Kingdom  Bridgestone U.K. Ltd. 700.0%  £28.035 Sale of tires and autcmotive compenents
Bridgestone Industrial Ltd. 100.0% €250 Sale of engineered products
US.A. Bridgestone Americas Holding, Inc. 100.0%  US$H127,000 Management of Americas operations
Bridgestone Firestone North American Tire, LLC ~ 100.0%  US$1 Manufacture and sale of tires
BFS Retail & Commercial Operations, LLC 100.0%  USSI Sale of tires and automotive components
and automotive maintenance and repair
sernvices
BFS Diversified Products, LLC 100.0%  USSi Manuiacture and sale of roofing
maierials. synthetic rubber, and other
products
Morgan Tire & Auto, Inc. 76.2% USSI Sale of lires and automotive components
and automotive maintenance and repair
5enices
Bridgestcne APM Company 100.0%  US$15,000 Manufacture and sale of antivibration
components for automobiles and of
synthetic resin products
Bridgestone Aircraft Tire (USA), Inc. 100.09%  US$1 Retread and sale of aircraft tires
Venezuela Bridgestone Firestone Venezotana C.A. 100.0%  Bs66.700 Manufacture and sale of tires
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Board of Directors, Corporate Auditors and Corporate Officers

Board of Directors

Shoshi Arakawa
Chairman of the Board

Tatsuya Okajima
Masaharu Oku

Giichi Miyakawa
Mark A. Emkes*
Tomoyuki lzumisawa
Shoji Mizuochi
Yasuo Asami
Osamu Inoue

Shigeo Watanabe
Advisor 1o the Board

* Chairman and CEO of
Bridgestone Americas Holding, Inc.

Board of Corporate Auditors
Executive Members

Yukio Kanai

Isao Kita

Non-Executive Members
Hiroshi Ishibashi
Toshiaki Hasegawa
Yo Takeuchi

Masayuki Takase
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Corporate Officers

Members of the Board Serving
Concurrently as Corporate Officers

Shoshi Arakawa
CEO and Presideni
Chief Risk-Managemery Officer

Tatsuya Ckajima
Senior Vice President
Responsible for Original Equipment

Masaharu Oku
Vice President and Senior Officer
Responsible for Tire Production and Distribution

Giichi Miyakawa
Vice President and Senior Officer
Respansible for Replacement Tire Sales

Tomoyuki lzumisawa

Vice President and Senior Officer

Chief Compliance Officer, Responsible for
Corporate Administration and Motorsport

Shoji Mizuochi

Vice President and Senior Officer

Chief Financial Officer, Responsible for Finance,
Procurerment and [T & Network; Concurrently
Director, Finance Division

Yasuo Asami
Vice President and Senior Officer
Responsible for Diversified Products

Osamu Inoue
Vice President and Senior Officer
Responsible for Technology

Vice President and Senior Officer

Hiromichi Odagiri
Chief Representative of Bridgestone Tire
Operations in Ching

Seconded to Bridgsstone [China) Investment Co.,
Ltdl., Chairman and President of Bridgestone
[China} Investment Ce., Ltd.

Vice President and Officers

Shigehisa Sano

Research & Development and Inteflectual Property

Kaoru Fujioka
Steet Cord

Osamu Mori
Electro-Materials and Chemical Products

Hiroshi Yamaguchi
Safety, Qualily and Environment

Kazuo Kakehi

Chemical and Industrial Products Production &
Technology; Concurrently Director, Chemical &
Industrial Products Production Division

Kazuhisa Nishigai
Tire Producticn and Distribution

Shuichi Ishibashi
Consumer Tire Business; Concurrently seconded to
Bridgestone FVS Corporation

Junya Sato
Seconded to Bridgestone Tire Kyushu Sales Co., Lid.

Masayuki Okabe

General Affairs, Legal Affairs and Corporate
Communications; Concurrently Director, General
Affairs and Subsidiaries Division

Yuzo Kumagai
Tire Production Technology

Jiro Asada
Industrial Products, Civil Engineering and Building
Materials & Equipment

Sugio Fukuoka
Qriginal Equipment Sales; Concurrently Director,
Criginal Equiprment Tire Sales Division

Toru Tsuda
Tire Developrment

Asahiko Nishiyama

Seconded to Bridgestone Americas Holding, Inc.
Vice Chairman and President of Bridgestone
Americas Holding, inc.

Takashi Urano

Seconded to Bridgestone Europe NV/SA
Chairman, CEQ and Prasident of Bridgestone
Europe NV/SA

Akira Nozawa

Seconded to Bridgestone Americas Holding, inc.
Chiet Financial Officer and Executive Vice President
of Bridgestone Americas Holding, Inc.

Mikic Masunaga
Tire Research and Material Development

Hideki Yokoyama

Product Planning and Business Development

Kiyoshi Nomura

Intemational Tire Business Operations;
Concurrently Director, Americas and Europe
Operations Division

Hideo Hara

Seconded jo Bridgestone Americas Holding, Inc.

Masaaki Tsuya
Cffice of Group CEQ; Concurrently Director,
Internal Auditing Office
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Shareholder information '

Head Office Paid-in- Capital
10-1, Kyabashi 1-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokye 104-8340, Japan ¥126,354 millicn
Phone: +81-3-3563-6811 Fax: +81-3-3567-4615
Web site; www.bridgestone.co.jp Shares
Authorized: 1,470.000,000
Established Issued: 833,102,321
1931
Transfer Agent
Employees The Chuo Mitsui Trust and Banking Company, Limited
123.727 33-1, Shiba 3-chome, Minato-ku, Tokye 105-8574, Japan
Independent Auditors Common Stock Traded
Dekoitte Touche Tohmatsu Tokyo, Nagoya, Osaka, Fukucka

Technical Centers

Bridgestone Corporation: Tokye and Yokohama. Japan
Bridgestone Amencas: Akron, Chio, U.S.A.
Bridgestone Europe: Rome, ltaly

Consolidated Subsidianes
440 companies {as of Decomber 31, 2005)

Common Stock Price Range

Tokyo Stock Exchrange;
v)
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
High 2.725 1.678 1,975 743 2,190 2,625 2.515
LOw 938 800 1,449 1,230 1,449 3,835 2,155

2006: 1st Quarter

Common Stock Price Index
irelaine o Mikker Stock Averagel

271
260
250
2445
230
220
210
200
190

Commaon Stock Price Index

Nikkei Stock Average
U
40
A

Note: Relative value 1s based on 100 at the end of December 1888,
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